
 

(next page)→ 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors Meeting 
Thursday, December 17, 2020 – 6 pm 
Sussex Elementary School Gymnasium 

21392 Sussex Drive, Stony Creek VA 23882 
==================================================================== 
 
1. Commencement 
1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum 

A.  Approval of Board Member(s) Participating by Phone under Board Remote 
Participation Policy 

1.02 The Invocation 
1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance 
1.04 Agenda Amendment(s) 
1.05 Approval of Regular Agenda 
 
2. Approval of Consent Agenda 
2.01 Approval of Minutes:  November 19, 2029 Regular Board Meeting  
2.02 Warrants and Vouchers 
2.03 Treasurer’s Report – for information only  
2.04 Financial Update – for information only 
2.05 Animal Services Report – for information only 
2.06 Community Development Report – for information only 
2.07 Housing Department Report – for information only 
2.08 Environmental Inspections Report – for information only 
2.09 Sheriff’s Department Report – for information only 
2.10 Public Safety Department Report – for information only 
 
3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 
3.01 FY20 Audit of the Sussex County – Aaron Hawkins, Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates 
 
4. Public Hearing 
4.01 Elderly/Disabled Tax Relief Ordinance – Deste Cox, Treasurer 
 Public Comments 
 Board Comments 
 Action on Public Hearing (if any) 
  
5. Appointments – none  
 
6. Action Items  
6.01 Stony Creek WasteWater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Capacity Evaluation Study  
6.02 Virginia Department of Corrections Radio System Maintenance Cost Sharing Agreement 
6.03 CARES Funding Update and Allocation for Volunteer Fire Departments and Rescue Squads  
6.04 Shands Energy Siting Agreement Termination 
6.05 FY21-22 Operating Budget Schedule 
6.06 COVID-19 Municipal Utility Relief Program Utility Agreement 



6.07 CDBG Asbestos Abatement and Billing Demolition Funding Agreement with the Town 
of Waverly 

 
7. Citizens’ Comments  
 
8. Unfinished Business  – none 
 
9. New Business – none  
 
10. Board Members Comments 
10.01 Blackwater District 
10.02 Courthouse District 
10.03 Henry District 
10.04 Stony Creek District 
10.05 Wakefield District 
10.06 Waverly District 
 
11. Closed Session – none 
  
12. Recess/Adjournment  
12.01 Recess/Adjournment 
12.02 Next Regular Meeting, January 21, 2020 @ 6 p.m. 



  
 

1 | Page – Minutes of November 19, 2020 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

At a Regular Meeting of the  
Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Held in the Sussex Elementary School Gymnasium on  
Thursday, November 19, 2020 at 6 pm 

 
 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
C. Eric Fly, Sr. 
Marian D. Johnson  
Debbie P. Jones 
Wayne O. Jones 
Susan M. Seward 
Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 
Steve White, Tie Breaker 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Richard Douglas, County Administrator 
Jeff Gore, County Attorney 
Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue 
Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 
G. Reid Foster, Public Safety 
Jeffrey Gary, Director of Public Works/Building Inspector 
William Jenkins, General Registrar 
Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 
 Deputy Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
 
1.  Commencement  
 
1.01  Call to Order/Determine Quorum (6:00 p.m.) 
 
The November 19, 2020 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors was called to 
order by Chair Seward. 
 
1.01a  Approval of Board Members Participating by Board’s Remote Participation Policy  
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried: 
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves of remote participation 
of Supervisors Johnson, D. Jones and Mr. Steve White, Tie Breaker. All Board members present 
voted aye. 
 
1.02  The Invocation 
 
The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Fly. 
 
1.03  The Pledge of Allegiance 
 



  
 

2 | Page – Minutes of November 19, 2020 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 
 
1.04  Agenda Amendments 
 
There were no agenda amendments. 
  
1.05  Approval of Agenda 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the November 19, 
2020 regular agenda as presented.   All Board members present voted aye. 
 
2. Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the November 19, 
2020 Consent agenda inclusive of the following: (a) Minutes of October 15 Regular and October 
29, 2020 Recessed Board meetings; (b) the Approval of Warrants and Vouchers; (c) the 
Treasurer’s Report; (d) Financial Update; (e) Animal Services Report; (f) Community 
Development Report; (g) Housing Report; (h) Environmental Inspections Report; (i) Sheriff’s 
Department Report; (j) Request to Remove Leave and Compensatory Time Cap for 2020; (k) 
Courthouse Fire Truck Title Transfer; and (l) Courthouse Fire Station Paving Budget Amendment.  
All Board members present voted aye. 
 
3.  Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 
 
3.01 Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) Update –Jerry Kee, Assistant Residency 

Administrator 
 
Mr. Jerry Kee, VDOT’s Assistant Residency Administrator, stated that he and Mr. Catlett of 
VDOT met with the County Administrator in October 2020.  They discussed the Six Year Plan, 
the Carver and Glyndon Lane project and maintenance issues with trash and things of that nature. 
 
Mr. Kee stated that one of the items discussed was the unpaved road Six Year Plan numbers.  He 
stated that the Board needed to identify some routes to transfer the money from removing the Steel 
Bridge Road project.  Mr. Kee stated that there was approximately $551,000 available that could 
probably complete a couple of routes on the list.   
‘ 
A map and highlighted area of discussion was provided to the Board.   
 
Mr. Kee stated that the Board of Supervisors and VDOT will begin working on the upcoming 
Secondary Six Year Plan in the next couple of months.  He reviewed the following items that need 
to be addressed before the new plan is passed by the Board: 
 
In 2019, Route 635 (Steele Bridge Road) was removed from the Six Year Plan at the request of 
the Board of Supervisors. At that time, no other road was selected to replace Route 635 in the plan. 



  
 

3 | Page – Minutes of November 19, 2020 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

During a later Board Meeting, Route 609 (Gray Road) was requested, but during VDOT’s review, 
it was noted that the traffic count did not meet the minimum of 50 vehicles per day (VPD)  to 
qualify for the unpaved road funds. The newest traffic count is only 30 VPD.  Mr. Kee stated that 
he had identified other funding that could be used for Route 609.  He stated that the County already 
had approximately $104,000 available in TeleCommunication Funds in the plan that can be 
transferred.    
  
The following is a list of the routes that does qualify for funding under this program: 
 
Route  Road Name  From  To  Traffic Count 
 
604  Chinquapin Road   606   621   90 
611 Mill Path Road   609   610   70 
632  Hunting Quarter Road  609   610   90 
636  Longevity Road   626     40   80 
640  Cabin Stick Road   637   626   70 
 
Route 735 UPC# 107435 
 
Mr. Kee stated that no action was required at the time; however, action will be needed in the next 
60 to 90 days for the upcoming year. 
 
Mr. Kee stated that drainage/draining ditches were also discussed.  Mr. Kee stated that the process 
had changed.  He stated that VDOT does roadside ditches and will do outfall ditches if they are 
causing damage to the road.  They are done on a case by case basis.   
 
Mr. Kee stated that if anyone had any issues, they could call Customer Service on their 800 
number, 800-FOR-ROAD (800-367-7623).   
 
He stated that VDOT was finished with their final mowing for the year.  The contract is due in to 
do all of the primaries.  Trash is included in the contract and will be picked up at that time.  He 
noted that there are a lot of work orders for litter.  They are viewed on a case by case basis.  Mr. 
Kee stated that there was a Memorandum of Understanding Agreement wherein inmates can be 
used to help pick up trash. 
 
He stated that VDOT was working on Route 613 and a section of Routes 634 and 636.  Mr. Kee 
noted Route 35 was their break point.  Waverly’s VDOT handles everything northeast of Route 
35.  Stony Creek’s VDOT basically handles everything southeast of Route 35.  There was a request 
for speed study on Beaver Dam Road.  A crosswalk study is currently being done in Waverly 
Route 460 and Route 40.  A safety study is being done for the Route 35 and Route 40 intersection.  
He stated there has been a number of accidents at that intersection.   
 
In regards to the status of Glyndon and Carver Lane, VDOT needs recorded plats and 
documentation for Right of Way acquisition before the roadway can be taken into the system. 
VDOT has funding available and is ready to initiate construction as soon as the final 
documentation has been received from the County. 



  
 

4 | Page – Minutes of November 19, 2020 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

 
3.02 Solid Waste Management Recommendation – Scott Bost and Major Terri Hall 
 
Chair Seward stated that the Board of Supervisors will receive recommendations and updates 
related to solid waste operations from Mr. Scott Bost (Smith Gardner) and an update on 
convenience center operations from Major Hall (Garda World).  Mr. Williams wasn’t able to be in 
attendance. 
 
Mr. Bost had been tasked by the Interim County Administrator to review all aspects of Sussex 
County’s solid waste operations and staffing.  He provided a brief summary/overview of his 
findings.   
 
Mr. Bost stated that the landfill was very well run and operated.  Atlantic Waste Disposal, Inc. 
operates and manages the County’s Solid Waste Management Facility and other waste services 
throughout the County including solid waste conveniences sites.  There are eight (8) solid waste 
convenience centers.  
 
Mr. Bost noted that the waste was covered.  He noted that Atlantic Waste Disposal, Inc. took care 
of maximum space of air space of the landfill. 
 
He reviewed all the operating records.  They were in compliance.  He provided a log for daily use. 
 
Mr. Bost toured the convenience sites.  They were found well managed, clean and well run. 
   
Please note that Mr. Bost has agreed to serve as the Director of Environmental Inspections on an 
interim basis, to further determine specific tasks and responsibilities of County landfill staff, and 
to assist with the other aspects of solid waste collection.  He will start January 1, 2021, 
approximately two or three days a week. 
 
Mr. Bost stated that there are two (2) ways to get tonnage—one way is from a skilled inspector; 
the other is from the State.  
 
There was discussion of positions, job descriptions and training. There was discussion of 
certifications (Class 1 and Class2); where will classes be conducted; and, if staff development 
issues—who paid and what were costs.   
 
Mr. Bost’s full report was included in the Board packet.  
 
Staff has been working with Major Hall to improve the overall operations of the County’s 
convenience centers managed by GardaWorld, including assuring that only appropriate solid waste 
is collected at the centers.  In addition, staff has been working with Major Hall and Waste 
Management to add bulk waste collection at the convenience centers. 
 
Major Hall stated that she has been working with Sussex for almost three years.  There are 20 
security officers that are residents of Waverly and Sussex County.  They have all received training.  
They are certified security officers.  Three (3) more security officers have been hired. 



  
 

5 | Page – Minutes of November 19, 2020 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

 
Major Hall stated that she goes out every couple of weeks checking convenience sites.  During the 
pandemic, she stated that she didn’t have any security officers affected by COVID-19.  If staff is 
affected by COVID-19, another security officer will be available immediately.   
  
Major Hall stated that they had talked about getting other dumpsters out to convenience sites.   
 
There was discussion of an easier way to dispose of metal recycling, old household appliances, 
mattresses, etc. 
 
There was discussion of providing separate containers for refrigerators, etc. to accommodate 
citizens and budgeting for the disposal. 
 
It was recommended to continue as is through the end of the year, until it is determined if the 
recyclables will be taken to the landfill. 
 
County Administrator Douglas noted that County staff had no special privileges for dumping 
mattresses, etc. 
 
No action was requested at this time 
 
3.03 Election Update – Bill Jenkins, General Registrar 
 
Mr. William “Bill” Jenkins, Sussex’s General Registrar, gave a brief overview of the November 
2020 Election update. 
 
Mr. Jenkins stated that there was a total different way of voting this year.  He stated that Virginia 
has 45 days of absentee voting.  He stated the difference this year was, there was no more excuse 
which in essence made it early voting.   
 
He stated 1,600 people voted in person in the Registrar’s office.  There were 721 voters by mail 
ballots.  Ballots were counted the night of the election.  Only two absentee ballots came in late by 
mail.  There were a few provisional ballots when the voter didn’t bring their ballot to the poll. 
 
On the machine of 1,600, there were 143.  There was 73% percentage voter turnout. 
 
There were two (2) difference set ups to vote in the office.  Sussex was one of the two drive through 
offices for voting in Virginia.  Voting was safe for both workers and voters.  Social distancing was 
in place. 
 
Mr. Jenkins stated that the Registrar’s office was running a poll and mailing absentee ballots at the 
same time. 
 
Mr. Jenkins noted the comparison of by mail voting in 2016 and 2020.  In 2016, there were 235 
by mail votes.  In 2020, there were 721 by mail votes.   
 



  
 

6 | Page – Minutes of November 19, 2020 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

The Board was provided a copy of Mr. Jenkin’s update which included a 2016 Absentee Ballot 
report. 
 
4.  Public Hearing   
 
4.01 CARES Act Funding Round 2 
 
County Administrator Douglas stated that on July 28, 2020, the County was notified by the 
Secretary of Finance that it would receive its second and final allocation in Coronavirus Aid, 
Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act of 2020, Coronavirus Relief Funds in the amount of 
$973,580.00. The total amount exceeds the 1% of total expenditures of the FY21 Adopted Budget 
requiring a public hearing and formal adoption by the governing body. 
 
The County was also awarded broadband funding pursuant to the federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, 
and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) in the amount of $469,151 for the Old Forty/Robinson 
Road Project. 
 
A copy of the draft Resolution approving a Budget Amendment & Supplemental Appropriation 
for Federal Categorical Aid Received to Respond to the Coronavirus Pandemic and a copy of 
Advertisement were included in the Board packet. 
  
Chair Seward opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Public Comments 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Chair Seward closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Board Comments 
 
There were no Board member comments. 
 
Action on Public Hearing 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby accepts and appropriates the 
CARES Act funding, in the amount of $1,442,731 and authorizes the Office of Management and 
Budget and the Finance Department to process the budget adjustment required for this 
appropriation, upon receipt of awards; and 
 

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board adopts resolution approving a Budget Amendment 
and Supplemental; to wit: 
 

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors adopted its original budget on June 
18, 2020 for FY21, and 



  
 

7 | Page – Minutes of November 19, 2020 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

  
WHEREAS, the coronavirus pandemic was an unanticipated event for which response 

funds were not included, and 
 
WHEREAS, federal categorical aid has been made available to assist the County in fighting 

the spread of coronavirus and ensuring the safety of its citizenry, and 
 

WHEREAS, the appropriate advertisements and public hearings, as required by Section 
15.2-2507 of the Code of Virginia, have been conducted; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed operational expenditures are expected to be completed over 
fiscal year 2021; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby 
approves and adopts the Fiscal Year 2021 budget amendment, and appropriates all funds as set 
forth in the amendment below: 
 
GENERAL FUND 
Revenues: 
Federal Government $1,442,731 
Total Revenues 
____1,442,731_____ 
_ 
Expenditures: 
Public Safety $ 1,442,731 
Total Expenditures $ 1,442,731 and 
 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Fly, Johnson, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward 
Voting nay:  none 
Abstained:  Supervisor Tyler 
 
5.  Appointments  
 
There were no appointments. 
 
6.  Action Items 
 
6.01 Elderly/Disabled Real Property Tax Ordinance – Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 
 
Ms. Deste Cox, the County Treasurer, presented information on a potential tax relief program for 
elderly and disabled persons.  
 
This concept was presented to the Board of Supervisors in Spring 2020. At the request of 
Supervisor Johnson, it has been brought back to the Board.  If the Board wishes to move forward 
with the ordinance, a public hearing will have to be advertised for the December regular meeting. 
 



  
 

8 | Page – Minutes of November 19, 2020 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Ms. Cox stated that the ordinance would authorize 100% tax relief on the home and one acre of 
land that the home is located on for taxpayers 65 years of age or older or permanently and totally 
disabled to meet the requirements of the ordinance. Those requirements would be number one.  
The home will be the full residence of the taxpayer who is claiming the exemption.  The gross 
household income will be less than $25,000.00 which will include the owner and anyone living in 
the dwelling except for caregivers and tenants.  The next requirement would be a gross financial 
worth of the owner and spouse of $100,000.00, excluding the value of the dwelling and up to one 
acre upon which the dwelling is situated.  The taxpayer will be required to file annually with the 
Commissioner of the Revenue, between January 1 and April 1, and maybe requested to provide 
any reasonable supporting documentation required by the Commissioner to verify income and 
financial worth. 
 
Based on the survey provided to the Board in the Spring and the requirements of the $25,000.00 
and $100,000.00, there will be approximately 193 taxpayers that will qualify.  The revenue impact 
will be approximately $70,000.00.  Ms. Cox stated that the figures could change.  The revenue 
impact could change based who qualifies and who does not qualify and the value of the land.  
 
Particular issues that will need to be considered include an income threshold for the tax exemption 
and limitation on the amount of land to be exempted.  The real estate must be owned by, and be 
occupied as the sole dwelling of someone at least 65 years of age. 
 
A draft ordinance was prepared by the County Attorney and could serve as the basis for such a 
program. Also included for review is a resident survey and background information, including 
information on tax relief programs of surrounding counties. 
 
County Attorney Gore noted to mention that the expected effective date would be for the 2022 tax 
year, which staff recommends due to the logistics of putting the program in place, having forms 
ready, educating the citizens, etc.   
 
A copy of the draft Ordinance to Adopt a Tax Relief Program for Elderly & Disabled Persons and 
the survey and backing Information on Surrounding Counties Tax Relief Programs were included 
in the Board packet.  It was noted that a revised draft Ordinance was provided to the Board 
members at the meeting. 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby directs staff to move forward 
with holding a Public Hearing at its December 17, 2020 Board meeting to consider an Elderly/ 
Disabled Real Property Tax Ordinance.  All Board members present voted aye. 
  
6.02 CARES Act Broadband Grant Performance Agreement 
 
County Administrator Douglas stated that for consideration is a CARES Act Broadband Grant 
Performance Agreement, prepared by the County Attorney, to be executed by the Board of 
Supervisors, Industrial Development Authority (IDA) Board of Directors, and PGEC Enterprises 
(PGECE).  
 



  
 

9 | Page – Minutes of November 19, 2020 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Mr. Douglas noted that he had previously mentioned applying for the CARES Act Broadband 
Grant with PGEC Enterprises.   
 
Sussex County was awarded a $469,151.00 broadband grant by the Governor’s Office on October 
28.  This agreement will allow PGECE to move forward with a broadband project to serve the Old 
Forty/Robinson Road area.  PGECE will be required to complete this project by December 25th.  
It was noted that funds were already received. 
 
This contract was considered by the IDA at a meeting held on November 18th in which the IDA 
approved the agreement contingent upon the Board of Supervisors’ approval.   
 
Mr. Casey Logan gave a brief overview of the project.  Mr. Logan stated  that broadband would 
be hooked up 45 homes and make it available to another 150 homes.  He stated that the County 
Administrator worked with the Superintendent of Sussex County schools to see how many homes 
were in the area that served students going to school. 
 
A copy of a revised draft CARES Act Broadband Performance Agreement for fiber to the home 
broadband expansion and the Sussex CRF Award letter, dated October 28, 2020 were provided 
to the Board. 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the CARES Act grant 
performance agreement with PGECE to install broadband infrastructure in the Old Forty/Robinson 
Road area PGEC Enterprises project.  All Board members present voted aye. 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appropriates $469,151.00 to the 
Industrial Development Authority Board of Directors for payment to PGEC Enterprises.  All Board 
members present voted aye. 
 
7.  Citizens’ Comments 
 

• Jamica Giles (Waverly District) – Improvement Association. 
• Zhanasia Shaw (Waverly District) – Improvement Association 
• Frank Irving (Sussex Service Authority/Waverly District) – CARES ACT Funding for 

Utility Bills Relief. 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby directs staff to work with Sussex 
Service Authority to help get the application CARES ACT Funding completed by November 30, 
2020.  All Board members present voted aye. 
 
8.  Unfinished Business 
 
There were no Unfinished Business. 
 



  
 

10 | Page – Minutes of November 19, 2020 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

9.  New Business 
 
There was no New Business. 
 
10.  Board Member Comments 
 
10.01 Blackwater District – Gro52 Groundbreaking; trash tax. 
 
10.02 Courthouse District – Resolution defunding police. 
 
10.03 Henry District – none 
 
10.04 Stony Creek District – Wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 
 
10.05 Wakefield District – VDOT drainage system in Wakefield (Virginia Diner); Happy 
Thanksgiving.  
 
10.06 Waverly District – Wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving; precautions of COVID-19. 
 
11. Closed Session 
 
There was no Closed Session. 
 
12.  Adjournment 
 
12.01 Adjournment 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  
RESOLVED that the November 19, 2020 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of 
Supervisors hereby adjourned at 8:19 p.m.  All Board members present voted aye. 
 
12.02 Next Meeting 
 
The next regular Board of Supervisors meeting will be held on Thursday, December 17, 2020 at 6 
p.m. 
 



TOTAL ALL WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $782,531.84

TOTAL ALL VOID CHECKS FOR APPROVAL $0.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS: CHECK NO. AMOUNTS PROCESS DATE

FOR MONTH OF  NOVEMBER  2020 217356-217402 130,751.70$   RUN DATE 11/05/20
217413-217462 324,514.07$   RUN DATE 11/12/20
217463-217468 180.00$          RUN DATE 11/16/20
217469-217518 133,786.78$   RUN DATE 11/19/20
217583-217614 69,999.09$     RUN DATE 11/24/20

Total Regular Warrants $659,231.64

PAY. DEDUCTION WARRANTS: 217403-217412 61,903.26$     RUN DATE 11/16/20
217519-217571 8,520.00$       RUN DATE 11/19/20
217572-217582 52,876.94$     RUN DATE 11/25/20

Total Deduction Warrants: $123,300.20

TOTAL VOUCHERS & WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $782,531.84

VOID CHECKS See attached -$                

December 17, 2020

      WARRANTS & VOUCHERS SUMMARY



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
CHECKS 

 









































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PAYROLL 
DEDUCTION 

CHECKS 













2.03

sricks
Highlight

















2.04

sricks
Highlight





2.05 

 

          

 

Animal Services  
 
 

December 17, 2020  
Monthly Report 

 
 
 
 

            



  

  
 

 
OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
CECIL R STAINBACK 
ANIMAL SERVICES OFFICER 
(434) 246-1044 – FAX (434) 246-6013 
EMAIL: STAINBACK@SUSSEXCOUNTYVA.GOV  

 
COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 
POST OFFICE BOX 1397 
15080 COURTHOUSE ROAD 
SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884 

 
December 8, 2020 

 
TO:  RICHARD DOUGLAS, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
FROM:  CECIL R STAINBACK, SENIOR ASO 
 
SUBJECT: NOVEMBER 2020 MONTHLY REPORT 
 
============================================================================== 
Enclosed is the NOVEMBER 2020 monthly report.    
 
Animal Services Monthly Report: Attached is the NOVEMBER 2020 Monthly Report. As you 
can see, we are attempting to adopt, rescue and return as many animals as possible. 

This month, three (3) canines were rescued, one (1) canine were returned to owner and zero (0) 
were adopted, one (1) canine fostered.  Zero (0) canines was euthanized. 

This month, one (1) feline rescued, zero (0) was adopted and zero (0) fostered.  Five (5) felines 
were euthanized for unable to touch. 

Daily Operation Data: Attached in the monthly daily operations data. The data shows the various 
task and functions preforms by the Officers daily.  Please read the description for each category 
for a better understanding and the hours spent each month.    

Administration:  The Administration category is very broad and includes the officer’s paperwork, 
time at the County Administration Office and taking moneys collected to the Treasurer’s Office.  
Each animal that is picked-up and received at the shelter must have a report and paperwork 
throughout it’s time there.  This category also includes coping files, printing photographs for 
cases and court cases and written reports. Total for November (17) Hours 

Patrol: Each Officer is required to patrol a designated area of the County each month.  They are 
looking for stray animals, code violations, and animal welfare checks and ensure the citizens have 
their County Licenses and Rabies shots just to mention a few task. Total for November (53.5) 
Hours 

Total Number of Calls for Service: A new category will be added to the report each month.  This 
data is needed to understand the call volume within the Division.  This number will be all calls 
received from the County Dispatch Center “# of calls” and, all “In house calls”, those calls received 
at the shelter or direct calls to staffing. Total for November (31) Calls   



   

 

Complaints: These are calls given to the Officers by the Dispatch Center or received from citizens 
by phone or word of mouth.  Total for November (38.5) Hours 

Welfare Checks: These are either response from phone calls and/or while on patrol.  These times 
are recorded since we need to understand how many hours are spent on this task. Total for 
November (7) Hours 

 Rabies/License Check: While on Patrol or on-duty, if an animal, pen, kennel and/or evidence 
that an animal is present; the Officer will check to ensure the owner of the animals has their 
County License and their Rabies shots are current.  Total for November (4) Hours 

Phone Call/In/Out: During their daily task, the Officers receive and return phone calls throughout 
the day. These could include communications with the staff members, answering questions for 
the citizens and addressing concerns, just to list a few examples.  Total in November (5) Hours 

Investigation: While answering complaints and/or on patrol, the Officers may come across 
different situations such as animal cruelty, lack of care for the animals, neglect and lack of medical 
attention, improper care of the animals to list a few examples.  The Officer will investigate the 
case to gather the facts, interview witnesses, communicate with the animal owner or caregiver, 
take photos to record the scene and gather evidence to present to the courts if needed. The 
Officer may have to return multiple times to gather the needed information. Total in November 
(0) Hours  

Follow up Visit: While on Patrol or addressing a complaint, if an Officer identifies a code violation 
with an animal, the Officer will attempt to work with the owner/caregiver to resolve the issue 
through education provide the code section information and explain the violation and possible 
way to resolve the problem. The owner will be given 10 days to resolve the issue unless they have 
been cited for the same violation before or it is a safety, health and/or animal Welfare issue. In 
these listed cases, a follow-up visit is required to ensure compliance on the identified issue.  Total 
in November (10) Hours 

Summons: Whenever a code can’t be resolved through education, information provided, working 
with the animal owner and other related examples, a summons will be given as a last result.  In 
cases where the animal owner has been warned once before about an issue, cases of animal 
cruelty and neglect, not getting a county licenses/rabies shots and other related examples, a 
summons shall be issued.  Total in November (1.5) Hours 

After Hour Cases:  Since emergency animal complaints and bites occur all the time, the Officers 
will be required to respond to such emergency after hours and on weekends.  Total in November 
(17.5) Hours 



   

 

Training:  Each Officer is required to attend in-service hour each two (2) years.  Also, the division 
provides training in-house during the month and also during our monthly staff meetings. Total in 
November (49.5) Hours 

Rabies Clinic:  The Officers assist the veterinarian with rabies vaccinations.  Several times a year, 
a local rabies vaccination clinic is held throughout the county to reduce the normal cost to the 
citizens.  Total in November (0) Hours 

Equipment/Shelter Maintenance:  The Officers provide maintenance on the shelter, traps; 
vehicles (wash and disinfect vehicles) and grounds whenever possible.  This reduces the cost of 
operations and down time waiting on an outside vendor to respond to the request.  Total in 
November (5) Hours 

Veterinarian: Our Officers from time to time must carry animals from the shelter to our 
veterinarian for medical reasons, injuries, medical treatment and other related issues. Total in 
November (23) Hours 

Landfill: Great strives are being made to reduce the number of Euthanized animals at our shelter. 
However, from time to time an animal may die within the shelter; an animal may have to be 
euthanized due to aggression, deemed dangerous by the courts and other related examples.  In 
such rare cases, the animals must be properly disposed of at the county landfill.  The shelter does 
have a large freezer to store the animals to avoid numerous trips each month.  Total in November 
(0) Hour 

Court: In cases where the Officers attempt to resolve the animal code related issues fails, the 
animal owner/caretaker shall be issued a Summons to appear in court.  Total in November (3) 
Hours 

Kennel Inspections: Each week the Officers make kennel inspections within our shelter.  They are 
looking for cleanliness, missing screws and/or hardware, sharp objects that could cut or injure 
the animals and/or possible safety and/or injury potentials to the staff and animals. Total in 
November (4) Hour 

Canine Shots: Whenever needed, the Officers will provide shots to the canines within the shelter. 
This is based on the number of canines in the shelter.  Total in November (0) Hours 

Shelter Related: The Officers provide support to the pound attendants and act as the 
Adoption/Rescue Supervisors at the shelter.  This includes but not limited to animal transports, 
animal feed from the storage bins to the shelter, transfer cleaning chemicals from the outside 
building to inside the shelter and many other related issues as an example.  Total in November 
(37) Hours   



-

Carryover Stray Surrender Born @ Pound Xfer in Bite Rescued Adopted Returned Euthanized Escaped Died/ Foster Died @ Pound Other Seizure Foster

Avian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Bovine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Canine 10 5 2 0 0 0 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Ovine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Equine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Feline 6 4 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0

ACTIVE CASES CANINE 13  FELINE 6 EQUINE 0

TOTALS 31 Calls
MILEAGE                                                                                                                                                                                           

UNIT 5 1,410 Gas
UNIT 6 1,509 Diesel
UNIT 7 Gas
TOTALS 2,919.00

SUMMONS 23

Sussex County Animal Control
Monthly Intake Report

November
2020

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Chart Title

Avian Bovine Canine Ovine Equine Feline





Month:    November 2020 Officers Man Hour Report

Date Admin Patrol # of In House In House Complaints Welfare Rabies/Lic Phone Calls Invest Follow up Summons After Duty Training Rabies Equip/Shelter Vet Landfill Court Kennel Canine Shelter

calls calls Assists Check Check In/Out visit Cases Clinic Maint. Inspect. Shots Related

1

2 3 1 0.5 8 1 3.5

3 2 8

4 3 2 1 1 1 1 8

5 2 1 1 8 2 3

6 1 1 2 8 2 3

7

8

9 1 3.5 3 3 1 1 0.5 2.5 3.5

10 2.5 1 1 2 1.5 4 5

11

12 8 2 2 1 2 1 1
13 1 5 1 1 4 1 3
14 12.5
15

16 6 1 1 2.5 0.5 1 3 2
17 2 1.5 2 2.5 0.5 0.5 1
18 2 1 1 8 2 3
19 1 1 5.5 1.5
20 2 2 1 1.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 1
21 3
22

23 1 5 1 1 4 2
24 3 2 3
25 2 4 2 5 1 1 2.5
26 2 2 2 1 1 1 1
27 3 1 1 1 1 1
28

29

30 2 3 4 5 3 2.5 3.5
31

Total 17 53.5 11 20 0 38.5 7 4 5 0 10 0 17.5 49.5 0 5 23 0 3 4 0 37

Admin will include: Paperwork, County Admin Office, Treasurers Office                     Training will include Monthly Meetings



2.06 

Community Development 
 

                     

December 17, 2020  
Monthly Report 



 

 

Community Development Office Monthly November 2020 
Beverly Walkup, Interim Director of Community Development 

 

  Economic Development.  

Community Development/Special Programs Grant Administration  

 The Fairfield Inn site remains under construction. 
 Management team meetings were held regarding the Waverly Tornado Recovery (UNOS) project and the 

Pocahontas Neighborhood project. 
 The Office of Community Development attended The Sussex County Housing Department’s Oversight 

Board meeting. 
 Five (5) housing projects have been completed under the Pocahontas project, including three (3) 

substantial reconstructions and two (2) rehabilitations. 
 Five (5) housing projects have been completed under the UNOS project, including three (3) substantial 

reconstructions and two (2) rehabilitations. 
 

 
Planning & Zoning 

 The Planning Commission did not meet during the month of November. 
 Three (3) Zoning Applications were reviewed and approved, including three (3) signs for Fairfield Inn, a new 

single-family dwelling, and a deck addition and porch replacement. 
 Two (2) new address assignments were issued for new residential construction. 
 Three (3) minor subdivision plats were approved creating one (1) new parcel for Gro52 and two (2) 

boundary line adjustments. 
 
 

Erosion & Sediment Control 

 Five (5) E&S projects are active with inspections being made after each rain event. 
 Letter of violation issued to Fairfield Inn for E&S violations. 

 
 

 
  



Community Development Office                                                            County  Of Sussex, Virginia   
Bart Nuckols                                                                                                                                          P. O. Box 1397 Sussex, Virginia 23884-0397 
Interim Director Of Community Development                                                                                                               Fax (434) 246-2175 
(434) 246-1043  

 
 

sussexcounty.govoffice.com 

 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:  December 7, 2020 
 
TO:  Richard Douglas, County Administrator  
     
FROM: Bart Nuckols, Interim Planning Director       
 
SUBJECT: November 2020 - Monthly Report 
 
 
Please accept this as the November 2020 update for the Community Development Department.   
  
BUILDING ACTIVITY  
 

• November 2020 
 

Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing & 
Sprinkler 
Permits 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Field 
Inspections 

Improvement 
Value 

Revenue 
Generated 

3 9 3 4 75 $145,732.00 $1,891.72 
 

• November 2019 
 

Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing & 
Sprinkler 
Permits 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Field 
Inspections 

Improvement 
Value 

Revenue 
Generated 

10 13 8 9 45 $6,181,475.00 $11,373.31 
 

• January 2020 – December 2020 (Yearly totals) 
 

Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing & 
Sprinkler 
Permits 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Field 
Inspections 

Improvement 
Value 

Revenue 
Generated 

88 97 39 49 619 $6,498,200 $40,026.54 
 



MONTHLY 

HOUSING REPORT 
“PROMOTNG SAFE, SANITARY, DECENT 

AND AFFORDABLE HOUSING” 

COUNTY OF SUSSEX

December 6, 2020 

2.07

sricks
Highlight



Monthly Report   October 6, 2020 

Page 1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
TO:                  Mr. Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

 

FROM:  Brenda H. Drew, Housing Programs Coordinator 

 

SUBJECT:      Housing Program Report 

DATE:              December 6, 2020 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

As always, we are looking forward to continuing our partnerships and programs which promote 

family self-sufficiency, home ownership opportunities, housing counseling and home repairs, as 

well as, rental assistance to low to moderate income families in need.  

 

  During last month, the following general work tasks were performed: 

 

Task and Training No. 

Annual Inspections   5 

 Annual Re-certifications  12 

 Initial Inspection 3 

Other Certifications 3 

 Family Briefings 0 

Executing HCV Contracts 3 

Certificates of Satisfaction 0 

Program Income Housing Rehab projects pending 0 

Total HCV applicants living or working in Sussex County 265 

Reports Submitted in CAMS 0 

Training and Meetings Attended (VaGHC Agenda attached) 4 

   



Monthly Report   October 6, 2020 

Page 2 

 

Again this year, it was wonderful to attend the Virginia Governor’s Housing Conference on 

November 18- 20.   This conference is the largest housing and networking event in the state.  The 

agenda below shares valuable tools and educational sessions that were provided virtually to help 

address many community issues affecting all Virginians. 

    

 



2.08 

Environmental Inspections  
   

 

 

                       

December 17, 2020  
Monthly Report 

 



Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 11/01/2020 12:00 AM to 11/30/2020 11:59 PM

Business Unit Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)
Origin Material Tons

DC Special Misc-Tons 651.33

Origin Total 651.33

DE MSWT 25.90

DE Sandblast Grit-Tons 5.97

Origin Total 31.87

MD MSWT 499.94

MD Sludge Indus-Tons 69.89

MD SludgeIndus-Tons 20.57

MD Special Misc-Tons 62.18

Origin Total 652.58

NC CDTC 86.74

NC MSWT 4,000.54

NC Special Misc-Tons 2,087.32

Origin Total 6,174.60

NJ Auto Fluff RGC-Tons 18,904.10

Origin Total 18,904.10

NY MSWT 56,703.03

Origin Total 56,703.03

PA MSWT 47.80

Origin Total 47.80

SUSS BUS MSWT 113.60

SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons 1,199.64

Origin Total 1,313.24

SUSS RES MSWT 486.73

Origin Total 486.73

VA CDTC 79.27

VA MSWT 10,593.76

VA SludgeIndus-Tons 1,275.58

VA Special Misc-Tons 879.69

Origin Total 12,828.30

Totals 97,793.58



2.09 

Sheriff’s Department 
 

 

                    

Monthly Report 
 

December 17, 2020 

BOS Meeting 

 

 

 
  







Monthly Report 
December 17, 2020 



 

 

 
OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY            COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 
G. Reid Foster, Jr       POST OFFICE BOX 1397 
PUBLIC SAFETY COORDINATOR                   15080 COURTHOUSE ROAD 
(434) 246-1305 EXT. 22       SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884 
EMAIL: RFOSTER@SUSSEXCOUNNTY.GOV 

 
Dec. 9,2020 

To: Richard Douglas 

From: Reid Foster 

November Report 

Radio System 

Worked with Dept . of Corrections on MOU have sent to county attorney for 
review 

Still working with Harris on paging issues. 

Generator at Courthouse Radio tower has been repaired 

Working with Harris on setting up maintenance on all radios 

Fire 

E81 generator still out of service Waiting on OBX fire to get repaired this 
generator has been out of service for over 5 month 

Met with Waverly, Courthouse and Jarratt to start the process of specking new 
engine’s for their dept. we are now meeting with vendors on changes to get final 
price 

mailto:RFOSTER@SUSSEXCOUNNTY.GOV


Met with all departments on sizing new turnout gear, helmets, boots, and other 
PPE for depts. All equipment has been ordered and some have come in.  

Met with Fire and Rescue association 

Rescue 

Still ordering PPE for providers 

Ordered two EKG Monitors funding to come from cares and budget 

Working with Stony Creek Rescue on spec for replacement of Unit 340  Reviewing 
spec and waiting on final price 

Emergency Management 

Still applying for grants for all areas of emergency management received two 
grants for PPE from OBIC and RSAF 

Attended several conference calls and webinars for COVID 19 

Still working with VDEM on getting grant for Wakefield for flooding 

Worked with townships on using cares money for fire and ems  

Ran two COVID test sites and set up more for December. 

Dec. 

 

 

  



BOARD ACTION FORM 
Agenda Item: Recognition #3.01 
 
Subject:  PRESENTATION:  FY20 Audit of the County of Sussex, Virginia – Mr. Aaron Hawkins 

(Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates) 
 
Board Meeting Date:  December 19 2020 
 
============================================================================== 
Summary:   Mr. Aaron Hawkins, with Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, will be present to review 
the FY20 Final Audit Report. 
 
A copy of the County of Sussex Annual Financial Report for the FYE June 30, 2020 will be provided 
under separate cover. 
 
Recommendation:  N/A 
 
  Attachments:    
   

============================================================================== 
 

ACTION:    
 

 

MOTION BY:    SECONDED BY:     

 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
 
Johnson ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

White  ___ ___  (Tie Breaker) 
 

  



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Public Hearing Item #4.01 
 
Subject:  Elderly/Disabled Real Property Tax Ordinance – Deste Cox 
 
Board Meeting Date:   December 17 2020  
   
============================================================================== 
Summary: The public hearing is to consider and receive public comments regarding adopting an 
Elderly/Disabled Real Property Tax Ordinance for the County of Sussex.  
 
Ms. Deste Cox, Treasurer, made presentation to the Board at its regular meeting in November, 
for a potential tax relief program for elderly and disabled persons.  The Board voted to move 
forward with the Elderly/Disabled Real Property Tax Ordinance and a Public Hearing. 
 
The attached ordinance was prepared by the County Attorney and could serve as the basis for 
such a program.  Specific items to consider are property owner income and assets, and the 
amount of land to be exempted. 
 
Attachment: (1) Draft Ordinance to Adopt a Tax Relief Program for Elderly & Disabled Persons 
 (2) Copy of Advertisement  
 
============================================================================== 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board adopts the Ordinance for a Tax Relief Program for Elderly 
and Disabled Persons. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
 
Johnson ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

White  ___ ___  (Tie Breaker) 



 

 
AN ORDINANCE  

OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF SUSSEX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
TO ADOPT A REAL PROPERTY TAX RELIEF PROGRAM FOR ELDERLY AND 

DISABLED PERSONS 

 
WHEREAS, Section 58.1-3210, et seq., of the Code of Virginia authorizes local governing 
bodies, such as the Sussex County Board of Supervisors, to exempt from taxation real estate 
and manufactured homes owned by qualifying elderly and permanently and totally disabled 
persons; and 

WHEREAS, such ordinance may provide for an exemption from a certain portion of real 
property taxes for individuals the age of 65 or over, or individuals who are permanently and 
totally disabled; and  

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors finds that it is in the best interest of the 
county residents to adopt such ordinance that provides for an exemption from taxation for 
qualified elderly and permanently and totally disabled County residents; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Code of the Sussex County, Virginia, is 
hereby amended as follows:  

CHAPTER ____  
REAL PROPERTY EXEMPTION FOR ELDERLY AND PERMANENTLY AND 

TOTALLY DISABLED PERSONS 
 

Sec. ____ Purpose of chapter.  

The purpose of this chapter is to provide for the exemption of payment of taxes for real 
estate and manufactured homes in accordance with the Code of Virginia, §§ 58.1-3210—58.1-
3218, for those elderly and permanently and totally disabled county residents who qualify 
under the provisions of this chapter.  

Sec. ___Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

“Affidavit” means the real estate tax exemption affidavit.  
 “Dwelling” means the fulltime residence of the person or persons claiming exemption.  

“Bona fide caregiver” means a person who provides direct care (as for children, elderly 
people, or chronically ill) in good faith without fraud or deceit. 

“Exemption” means 100% exemption from taxes for real estate and manufactured homes 
pursuant to the provisions of this chapter.  



“Income” means income from whatever source derived, including, but not limited to, 
Social Security payments, inheritance, gifts, gains from the sale or exchange of assets, proceeds 
of insurance, welfare receipts and benefits received from various pension plans.  

“Manufactured home” shall mean that which is defined in Code of Virginia, § 36-
85.3.  

“Net combined financial worth” means the fair market value of assets, tangible or 
intangible, legal or equitable, of the owner or owners, and the spouse of any owner, but 
excluding the value of the dwelling and the land, as provided in section 16-55(3).  

“Permanently and totally disabled” means unable to engage in any substantial gainful 
activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment or deformity 
which can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for the duration of such 
person's life.  

“Tax” means the annual real estate and manufactured home tax, however assessed, of the 
county.  

“Taxable year” means the calendar year, from January 1 until December 31, for which 
exemption is claimed.  

“Taxpayer” means a person who owns and occupies, as his sole dwelling, property subject 
to the tax of the county.  

Sec. ___ Authorized; general prerequisites to grant.  

(a) A tax exemption is authorized for such real estate that is owned and occupied as 
the sole dwelling of such taxpayers who are not less than 65 years of age, or who are 
permanently and totally disabled, and who are eligible under the provisions of this chapter. A 
dwelling jointly held by spouses may qualify if either spouse is 65 or over or is permanently 
and totally disabled. 

(b) Exemption is authorized only if: 
(1) The total combined gross income during the immediately preceding calendar year 

from all sources of the owners of the dwelling living thereon and of the owners' relatives and 
non-relatives living in the dwelling, excluding bona fide caregivers of the owners and bona fide 
tenants, does not exceed $25,000.00 provided that the first $5,000 of the income of each relative, 
other than a spouse, of the owner who is living in the dwelling shall not be included in such 
total; and  

(2) The gross combined financial worth, including equitable interests, as of December 
31 of the immediately preceding calendar year of the owner and of the spouse of any owner,  
excluding the value of the dwelling and the land, not exceeding ONE ACRE upon which it is 
situated, does not exceed $100,000.00.  

Sec. ___ Applies to residential property only.  

It is the express purpose of this chapter to confine the exemption to residential property 
exclusively used as such by the owners thereof. No income bearing residential property or 
combination of business and residential property shall be entitled to the exemption.  
 

Sec. ___ Taxpayer's affidavit and certificate of disability.  



(a) For a taxpayer to qualify for exemption, he must file annually, after January 1 but 
not later than April 1, with the commissioner of the revenue on forms provided by the 
commissioner of the revenue an affidavit under oath setting forth:  

(1) The names of the related persons occupying such real estate; and  
(2) That the total combined net worth including equitable interests and the combined 

income from all sources, of the persons specified above, does not exceed the limits prescribed 
in this ordinance.  

(b) If a taxpayer is under 65 years of age such affidavit shall have attached thereto a 
certification by the Veterans Administration or the Railroad Retirement Board, or if the 
taxpayer is not eligible for certification by any of these agencies, a sworn affidavit by two 
medical doctors licensed to practice medicine in the state, to the effect that the taxpayer is 
permanently and totally disabled, as defined in Virginia Code Section 58.1-3217. The affidavit 
of at least one of such doctors shall be based upon a physical examination of the taxpayer by 
such doctor. The affidavit of one of the doctors may be based on information contained in the 
records of the civil service commission which is relevant to the standards for determining 
permanent and total disability as so defined.  
 

Sec. ___ Commissioner of the revenue may request production of documents and 
make inquiries of taxpayer.  

In administering this chapter, the commissioner of the revenue may request, if needed, 
certified tax returns or other documents of the taxpayer necessary to establish the income or 
financial worth of the taxpayer. The commissioner may make reasonably necessary inquiries 
of the taxpayer, requiring answers under oath, to determine qualifications specified in this 
chapter, including qualification as permanently and totally disabled.  

If it is determined that the person is qualified for the exemption, the commissioner shall 
notify the person in writing of the amount of the exemption. If it is determined that the person 
is not eligible for the exemption, the commissioner shall notify the person in writing of the 
fact the exemption has been denied.  

An individual who does not qualify for the exemption or deferral under this article based 
upon the previous year's income limitations and financial worth limitations, may nonetheless 
qualify for the current year by filing an affidavit that clearly shows a substantial change of 
circumstances, that was not volitional on the part of the individual to become eligible for the 
exemption or deferral, and will result in income and financial worth levels that are within the 
limitations of the ordinance.  

Sec. ___ Effect of applicant's residency in hospital, nursing home or similar 
facility.  

The fact that persons who are otherwise qualified for exemption pursuant to this chapter 
are residing in hospitals, nursing homes, convalescent homes or other facilities for physical or 
mental care for extended periods of time shall not be construed to mean that the property for 
which tax exemption is sought does not continue to be the sole dwelling of such persons during 
such extended periods of other residence, so long as such property is not used by or leased to 
others for consideration.  



Sec. ___ Nullification upon change in status.  

Changes in respect to income, financial worth, ownership of property or other factors 
occurring during the taxable year for which the affidavit is filed and having the effect of 
exceeding or violating the limitations and conditions provided herein shall nullify any 
exemption for the then current taxable year and the taxable year immediately following. 

A change in ownership to a spouse less than 65 years of age and not totally and permanently 
disabled which resulted solely from the death of the qualified spouse shall result in a prorated 
exemption for the then current taxable year.  

 
Sec. ___ Effective Date.  The provision of this chapter shall apply commencing 

with the 2022 tax year. 

 

Adopted by the Sussex Board of Supervisors on a motion by Supervisor    
  and seconded by Supervisor      and a vote of   , at their 
regularly scheduled meeting on the    day of     , 2020. 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 
___________________________________   
Shilton Ricks Butts, Clerk of the Board 
 
 

 

Approved as to form:  

 

____________________ 
County Attorney 



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Item #6.01 

Subject:  Stony Creek WasteWater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Capacity Evaluation Study 

Board Meeting Date:   December 17 2020 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   Attached for your consideration is Work Order #8 from the Berkley Group, to 
complete a Stony Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant Capacity Evaluation Study in the amount 
of $28,000.  The Berkley Group will partner with the Wooten Company, an engineering firm from 
Raleigh, to determine future growth and wastewater treatment needs in the Stony Creek area. 
Staff has been working with the Sussex Service Authority and the Town of Stony Creek to address 
the need to increase wastewater capacity at the Stony Creek WWTP, which is currently being 
operated at permit capacity and cannot handle any additional flow under its state wastewater 
permit.  This planning study may serve as the basis of a state grant application in Spring 2021 to 
design a new wastewater treatment facility. 

The Flannelly Group recently approached the Town of Stony Creek about redevelopment 
opportunities within the town and reopening of the former Gibbs sawmill.  Because sufficient 
wastewater capacity is not available to serve this proposed development or other potential 
commercial and industrial development in the Stony Creek area (thereby severely impacting 
economic development efforts), county staff began working with the Sussex Service Authority to 
address this issue. 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the Berkley Group’s Work Order #8 in the 
amount of $28,000, and authorization for the County Administrator to execute these agreements 

Attachments: (1) Work Order 8 Scope and Fee – Stony Creek WWTP Evaluation 

============================================================================== 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board approves Berkley Group’s Work Order #8 in the amount 
of $28,000, and authorization for the County Administrator to execute these agreements. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 
White ___ ___  (Tie Breaker) 

Action Items - Page 1



December 10, 2020 

Mr. Richard Douglas 
County Administrator 
20135 Princeton Road 
Sussex, VA 23884 

RE: Work Order #8: Stony Creek WWTP Capacity Evaluation Study 

Dear Mr. Douglas: 

We are pleased to present the associated scope and fee to provide the County with project support 
that will expand the waste water treatment plant (WWTP) capacity for the Stony Creek area.  Should 
you have any questions related to the scope and associated fee for the work order, please let me 
know.   

Thank you for the opportunity to work with you and your staff to help achieve the County’s goals.  

Sincerely, 

Andrew D. Williams, AICP 
Chief Executive Officer 

This serves as The Berkley Group’s notice to proceed under the terms and conditions stated herein. 

____________________________________________________________________            __________________________   
Richard Douglas Date  
County Administrator 

Action Items - Page 2



I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Stony Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) is owned and operated by the Sussex Service 
Authority in Sussex County, VA. The WWTP is 40,000 gallon per day (gpd) lagoon-style WWTP and 
operated under Permit VA0062669. The treatment facility consists of a static barscreen, two (2) 
stabilization lagoons, chlorination and dechlorination contact chamber, and a gravity feed cascade 
aerator prior to discharge. The WWTP serves the Town of Stony Creek (approximately 124 residents) 
and a commercial travel truck stop area including a travel center, two hotels, and several restaurants 
at an Interstate 95 (I-95) exit north of the WWTP. Currently, the WWTP has experienced instances 
where flows exceeded 40,000 gpd.  Additional flows are expected from future growth at the travel 
center including a third hotel (expected to be in operation in the next few months) and other potential 
development along the I-95 corridor. While the WWTP is permitted for a flow of 40,000 gpd, a 60,000 
gpd flowsheet is included as part of the permit. This indicates that the facility may be capable of 
treating more flow. However, if flows to the WWTP increase above the 40,000 gpd flowsheet, the 
permit compliance requirements will become stricter. As a result of the impending increased flows, 
there is a need to determine the realistic treatment capacity of the facility and determine at what 
point the current operational strategy is no longer suitable to meet the treatment demands. Sussex 
County desires to conduct a study to determine future wastewater capacity needs for the Stony Creek 
service area and evaluate alternatives to effectively handle future wastewater demands. 

II. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Berkley Group will provide support to Sussex County to expand the WWTP capacity for the Stony 

Creek area. 

Task 1 - Meetings/Site Visit/Existing Conditions 

a. Hold project kick-off meeting with Sussex County staff.  On the same day, visit the WWTP
site and travel rest stop and the hotels.  As part of the meeting, Wooten would need to
obtain the following data from WWTP staff:

i. Existing WWTP design criteria, drawings, and O&M Manuals.
ii. Stony Creek and Travel Rest/Hotels water usage data for from Year 2017 to present.

iii. Wastewater influent and effluent flow and concentration data from Year 2017 to
present.

iv. Vendor contact information on the existing Sequencing Batch Reactor (SBR) WWTP
that the County currently operates.

b. Discuss future planned commercial growth along the I-95 corridor, including the new
hotel and lumber yard area.

c. Conduct up to two virtual project review meetings during the process (as needed).

Task 2 - Flow and Load Projections 

a. Evaluate current population figures and commercial growth projections for the service
area. This task shall require coordination with both Sussex County and the Town of Stony
Creek.

b. Prepare future wastewater flow estimate for the WWTP service area. Total flow will
include residential, commercial, industrial wastewaters, as well as an allowance for 
inflow and infiltration (I/I) at the Stony Creek WWTP.

c. Provide Flow estimate to Sussex County Water and Sewer Authority so they can request
limits from the State for the WWTP. 

Action Items - Page 3



Task 3 – Rough Cost Opinion 

a. Rough Cost Opinion - Based on the limits provide by the State and general knowledge of
WWTP costs, we will provide the County with a rough Cost Opinion to assist the County
in planning for the funding of a possible project.

b. Evaluate if a new site is needed (such as neighboring farmland).

Task 4 – Summary Memo 

a. Wooten will prepare a brief memo of text/information summarizing the data
determined in Tasks 1 through 3 with supporting attachments and graphs (as
appropriate).

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

In addition to the foregoing services being performed, the following services may be provided upon 

prior written authorization of the Owner.   

(1) Prepare CAMA permit.

(2) Prepare USACE Individual Permit.

(3) Appear before courts or boards on matters of litigation or hearings related to the

project.

(4) Conduct additional work or extended services during construction due to the fault of

the Contractor or due to the overrun in time for construction.

(5) Grant/Loan administration.

SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE OWNER 

(1) Designate a person to act as the Owner's representative with respect to the work to be

performed under the agreement. Such person shall have complete authority to transmit

instructions, receive information, interpret, and define the Owner policies.

(2) Provide such legal, accounting, and insurance counseling services as may be required

for the project.

(3) Pay all permit and application fees required for the project approval and construction.

(4) Assist by placing at disposal all available information pertinent to the projects as may

be required.

(5) Guarantee access to and make all provisions to enter upon public and private property

as required to perform this service.

(6) Examine all sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals, and other documents

presented, obtaining advice of an attorney, insurance counselor, and other consultants

as the Owner deems appropriate for such examination.

(7) Give prompt written notice whenever the Owner observes or otherwise becomes aware

of any defect in the project or changed circumstances.

(8) Furnish in a timely manner with copies of pertinent correspondence relating to the

project which would not otherwise have been delivered to the consultant.

(9) Bear all cost of incidentals for the compliance with the requirements of this article and

the foregoing article entitled "Additional services".

Action Items - Page 4



III. TERM OF SERVICE
These services will be provided to Sussex County commensurate with the terms of the Master

Agreement. The Consultant will commence work on or as soon as practicable after the date of the

execution of this Scope of Work and receipt of a written Notice to Proceed (NTP).  All work as set

forth in the Scope of Services shall be completed as shown below:

• Complete the planning and preliminary engineering services described in approximately

five (5) months following receipt of NTP.

IV. FEE
The cost to provide services will be $28,000. This price is lump sum unless amended with a change

order approved by the County in writing.

Action Items - Page 5



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Item #6.02 

Subject:  Virginia Department of Corrections Radio System Maintenance Cost Sharing Agreement 

Board Meeting Date:   December 17 2020 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   Attached for your consideration is a “Memorandum of Understanding for Cost 
Sharing of Radio System Maintenance at Sussex” between the Virginia Department of Corrections 
(DOC) and Sussex County, to share in the future cost of maintenance of the radio system jointly 
operated by Sussex County and DOC and maintained by L3Harris.  By the DOC entering into this 
agreement, Sussex County will save approximately $175,000 per year in maintenance costs.  This 
agreement was developed after County staff met with DOC representatives to discuss a cost 
sharing arrangement, and the agreement has been reviewed and approved by the County 
Attorney.  Please note that the radio system maintenance agreement with L3Harris will be 
provided to the Board of Supervisors for consideration within the next 1-2 months.   

Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the “Memorandum of Understanding for Cost 
Sharing of Radio System Maintenance at Sussex” and authorization of the County Administrator 
to execute all related documents. 

Attachments: (1) Letter of Intent 
(2) MOU of  Cost Sharing of Radio System Maintenance at Sussex

============================================================================== 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board approves the “Memorandum of Understanding for Cost 
Sharing of Radio System Maintenance at Sussex” and authorization of the County Administrator 
to execute all related documents. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 
White ___ ___  (Tie Breaker) 

Action Items - Page 6



Action Items - Page 7



Action Items - Page 8



Action Items - Page 9



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Item #6.03 

Subject: CARES FUNDING Update and Allocation for Volunteer Fire Departments and Rescue 
Squads 

Board Meeting Date:   December 17 2020 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   Attached for your information is a summary of expenditures from $1.947 million in 
Sussex County CARES Act funding.  Staff has done an outstanding job utilizing these funds to meet 
various needs in our COVID-response, and it is anticipated that very few funds will be returned 
to the State in late January.  As part of these expenditures is a proposed contribution to each of 
the seven volunteer fire departments and rescue squads for $15,000 each, that will address their 
inability to sufficiently raise funds through fundraising efforts this year (this contribution was also 
unanimously recommended by the county IDA). 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the $15,000 contribution to each of the seven 
volunteer fire departments and rescue squads for COVID-related expenses. 

Attachment: Spreadsheet – Sussex County CARES Act Funding Expenditures 

============================================================================== 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board approves the $15,000 contribution to each of the seven 
volunteer fire departments and rescue squads for COVID-related expenses. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________  

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 
White ___ ___  (Tie Breaker) 

Action Items - Page 10



Sussex County CARES Act Funding

12/11/2020 11:01

Invoice Date Date Paid
Category

Dept. Vendor Item Amount
Invoice 
Copy Remaining Balance

1 3/27/2020 4/30/2020 Government Operational Svcs Admin BB&T Zoom/ BOS Meetings 14.99$  X $1,947,145.01
2 4/1/2020 4/21/2020 Disinfection & Sanitation Public Safety Van Cleef Multi-purpose Degreaser 190.80$  X $1,946,954.21
3 4/7/2020 4/21/2020 PPE Public Safety C. W. Williams & Co. Decon Cloth Wipes for Fire & EMS 313.62$  X $1,946,640.59
4 4/8/2020 4/30/2020 Disinfection & Sanitation Public Safety BB&T Sanitizer Bottles 95.70$  X $1,946,544.89
5 4/16/2020 4/28/2020 PPE Public Safety C. W. Williams & Co. Decon Cloths 309.23$  X $1,946,235.66
6 4/16/2020 4/28/2020 PPE General District Court Faye Yelverton Face Masks 150.00$  X $1,946,085.66
7 4/21/2020 6/4/2020 PPE Magistrate BB&T PPE/Masks 36.94$  X $1,946,048.72
8 4/21/2020 4/30/2020 PPE Public Safety Stony Creek Vol. Rescue Safety Spectacles,Gloves 261.58$  X $1,945,787.14
9 4/21/2020 4/30/2020 Clean up-Exposure Public Safety Waverly Rescue Squad 600.00$  X $1,945,187.14

10 4/23/2020 4/30/2020 Disinfection & Sanitation Public Safety Waverly Motors Fire & EMS Cleaner 472.60$  X $1,944,714.54
11 4/24/2020 6/4/2020 PPE Magistrate BB&T PPE/Masks 21.95$  X $1,944,692.59
12 4/28/2020 6/4/2020 Safe Access to Government Administration BB&T ZOOM Virtual Mtgs 15.74$  X $1,944,676.85
13 5/9/2020 6/4/2020 Building Modifications Bldg & Grnds BB&T Plexi Glass Shields 122.24$  X $1,944,554.61
14 5/9/2020 6/4/2020 Building Modifications Bldg & Grnds BB&T Plexi Glass Shields 31.05$  X $1,944,523.56
15 5/10/2020 5/21/2020 Telework for Government Treasurer Verizon Wireless Phone 50.33$  X $1,944,473.23
16 5/12/2020 6/4/2020 Building Modifications Bldg & Grnds/Admin Lowes Plexi Glass Shields 246.57$  X $1,944,226.66
17 5/13/2020 6/4/2020 Safe Access to Government Treas/COR BB&T Pens (One-time Use) for Public 21.06$  X $1,944,205.60
18 5/13/2020 6/4/2020 PPE Treas/COR BB&T PPE/Masks & Gloves 92.65$  X $1,944,112.95
19 5/15/2020 5/21/2020 Building Bldg & Grnds/Admin Agric VA Tools/Supplies 10.51$  X $1,944,102.44
20 5/15/2020 6/4/2020 PPE Public Safety Stony Creek Vol. Rescue PPE 2,899.66$                X $1,941,202.78
21 5/15/2020 6/4/2020 Building Modifications Bldg & Grnds BB&T Plexi Glass Shields 163.43$  X $1,941,039.35
22 5/15/2020 6/11/2020 Building Modifications Admin/Treas Thacker Hardware Screws,Plexiglass 13.97$  X $1,941,025.38
23 5/16/2020 6/11/2020 Building Modifications Admin/Treas Thacker Hardware Nails/Plexiglass 3.79$  X $1,941,021.59
24 5/17/2020 6/11/2020 Building Modifications Admin/Treas Thacker Hardware Screws,Plexiglass 9.98$  X $1,941,011.61
25 5/18/2020 5/21/2020 Building Modifications Bldg & Grnds/Admin Agric VA Tools/Supplies 9.36$  X $1,941,002.25
26 5/19/2020 5/21/2020  Other (Mileage) Treasurer Deste Cox PPE supplies 46.28$  X $1,940,955.97
27 5/19/2020 5/21/2020 PPE Treasurer Deste Cox PPE supplies 97.17$  X $1,940,858.80
28 5/19/2020 6/4/2020 PPE Administration BB&T PPE/Masks 829.13$  X $1,940,029.67
29 5/19/2020 5/28/2020 Building Modifications County-wide Agri VA Plexi Glass Material 2.94$  X $1,940,026.73
30 5/20/2020 6/4/2020 Safe Access to Government Administration BB&T Webcam/Microphone for Virtual Mtgs 78.99$  X $1,939,947.74
31 5/20/2020 6/25/2020 Telework for Government Treasurer DELL PC/Telework 1,689.83$                X $1,938,257.91

Action Items - Page 11



32 5/20/2020 6/25/2020 Telework for Government Administration DELL PC/Telework 1,689.83$                X $1,936,568.08
33 5/26/2020 7/16/2020 Disinfection & Sanitation County-wide BB&T Fogger Spray (JE NEEDED) 1,111.49$                X $1,935,456.59
34 5/27/2020 7/16/2020 Government Operational Svcs Administration BB&T ZOOM 15.74$  X $1,935,440.85
35 5/29/2020 6/11/2020 PPE Administration Propac, Inc. Gloves 1,012.80$                X $1,934,428.05
36 6/9/2020 6/25/2020 Telework for Government Administration DELL PC/Telework 937.98$  X $1,933,490.07
37 6/9/2020 7/16/2020 Safe Access to Government Administration BB&T Printer/Thermometer 220.33$  X $1,933,269.74
38 6/10/2020 8/13/2020 Telework for Government Admin/Treas Verizon Wireless Wireless phones 108.05$  X $1,933,161.69
39 6/18/2020 Small Business Grant County Businesses IDA Grants-Small Businesses 100,000.00$           $1,833,161.69
40 6/25/2020 8/26/2020 Disinfection & Sanitation Public Safety Atlantic Emergency Disinfectant Concentrate 2,462.00$                X $1,830,699.69
41 6/30/2020 Reid-Salary Public Safety Reid Foster Payroll 15,192.76$             $1,815,506.93 131,653.07$       

42 7/2/2020 7/21/2020 PPE Public Safety Stony Creek Vol. Rescue PPE 293.70$  X $1,815,213.23
43 7/10/2020 8/13/2020 Telework for Government Admin/Treas Verizon Wireless Wireless phones 109.50$  X $1,815,103.73
44 7/13/2020 8/13/2020 PPE Public Safety/Admin BB&T Face Masks 609.84$  X $1,814,493.89
45 7/14/2020 8/13/2020 PPE Administration BB&T Face Masks 589.75$  X $1,813,904.14
46 7/15/2020 8/26/2020 Other-Grant Writer Public Safety Gene Reams and Grant writing 1,375.00$                X $1,812,529.14
47 7/16/2020 Reid-Salary Public Safety Reid Foster Payroll 1,670.24$                $1,810,858.90
48 7/17/2020 9/3/2020 PPE Environmental Inspections Adams Store and Face Masks 19.94$  X $1,810,838.96
49 7/27/2020 8/13/2020 Disinfection & Sanitation Public Safety Atlantic Emergency Disinfectant Concentrate 2,462.00$                X $1,808,376.96
50 7/28/2020 7/29/2020 Government Operational Svcs County-wide Insercorp Website Announcements 1,800.00$                X $1,806,576.96
51 7/31/2020 Reid-Salary Public Safety Reid Foster Payroll 770.88$  $1,805,806.08
52 8/10/2020 9/3/2020 Telework for Government Admin/Treas Verizon Wireless Wireless phones 109.50$  X $1,805,696.58
53 8/12/2020 Test Kits Sheriff 5,000.00$                $1,800,696.58
54 8/13/2020 10/22/2020 (Other) Transfers Town Allocation Stony Creek $15,675x2 31,350.00$             X $1,769,346.58
55 8/13/2020 10/20/2020 (Other) Transfers Town Allocation Waverly $171,934x2 343,868.00$           X $1,425,478.58
56 8/13/2020 10/22/2020 (Other) Transfers Town Allocation Wakefield $72,434x2 144,868.00$           X $1,280,610.58
57 8/13/2020 10/22/2020 (Other) Transfers Town Allocation Jarratt $10,949x2 21,898.00$             X $1,258,712.58
58 8/13/2020 11/5/2020 School Recreation 4-H Center Larry Hughes email Adult/Youth Recreational Services 50,000.00$             X $1,208,712.58
59 8/13/2020 8/26/2020 PPE Private Entity Blackwater Regional Library Disinfection & Sanitation 1,850.00$                X $1,206,862.58
60 8/16/2020 Reid-Salary Public Safety Reid Foster Payroll 1,252.68$                $1,205,609.90
61 Telework for Government County-wide Telework Equipment, Supplies 20,000.00$             $1,185,609.90
62 8/19/2020 9/3/2020 Public Health Employees Public Safety C. W. Williams & Co. Coveralls 821.25$  X $1,184,788.65
63 8/19/2020 9/17/2020 PPE Registrar BB&T Election Supplies 67.78$  X $1,184,720.87
64 8/19/2020 9/17/2020 PPE Registrar BB&T Election Supplies 478.75$  X $1,184,242.12
65 8/27/2020 9/9/2020 Government Operational Svcs Sheriff Municipal Emergency Scan Kit/Tri-Pods 2,207.72$                X $1,182,034.40
66 9/2/2020 9/9/2020 Government Operational Svcs Administration Insercorp Website/Grant Applications Small Bus. 1,200.00$                X $1,180,834.40
67 9/23/2020 9/23/2020 Sheriff Adjustments Sheriff (See schedule) PPE, Disinfectant, Scanners 15,640.77$             X $1,165,193.63

Action Items - Page 12



68 9/30/2020 PPE Public Safety Atlantic Emergency Servic Face Masks/Respirator 27,157.50$             $1,138,036.13

69 Other (Safe Access to Government) Sheriff Haley Ford South Vehicles (VAN) 44,999.21$             $1,093,036.92 722,470.01$       

70 9/30/2020 10/14/2020 PPE Public Safety Stony Creek Vol. Rescue PPE 1,014.30$                $1,092,022.62
71 10/5/2020 Public Safety Public Safety NAFECO Turnout Gear 224,500.00$           $867,522.62
72 10/8/2020 10/20/2020 Public Safety Public Safety AED'S 27,000.00$             X $840,522.62
73 10/15/2020 10/31/2020 Government Operational Svcs All Departments Employees Hazardous Pay 166,319.26$           X $674,203.36
74 Courthouse Vol Fire Dept. 15,000.00$             $659,203.36
75 9/4/2020 10/14/2020 Telework for Government Administration Staples Printer 229.99$  X $658,973.37
76 Building Modifications Per Richard Animal Shelter Upgrades 180,000.00$           $478,973.37
77 Wakefield Vol Fire Dept. 15,000.00$             $463,973.37
78 Public Safety Public Safety Heart Monitors 65,000.00$             $398,973.37
79 Stony Creek Vol Fire Dept. 15,000.00$             $383,973.37
80 Jarratt Vol Fire Dept. 15,000.00$             $368,973.37
81 Waverly Vol Fire Dept. 15,000.00$             $353,973.37
82 Stony Creek Vol Rescue Squad 15,000.00$             $338,973.37
83 10/30/2020 11/19/2020 Public Health Employees Public Safety C. W. Williams & Co. Fire Helmets 17,453.88$             X $321,519.49
84 Telework for Government Administration Document Systems Printer/Copier/Scanner December 150.00$  $321,369.49
85 9/14/2020 9/24/2020 Disinfection & Sanitation Public Safety Atlantic Emergency Solutions Gloves, Squeeze Bottles 1,765.00$                X $319,604.49
86 10/12/2020 10/22/2020 Building Modifications Animal Shelter Jeff Robinson & Assoc. Enginnering Plans for Anml Shelter 1,350.75$                X $318,253.74
87 10/26/202020 County-wide Payroll Leave/Salaries 33,840.03$             $284,413.71
88 10/27/2020 11/5/2020 Government Operational Svcs County-wide DELL Web Cams 614.77$  X $283,798.94
89 Waverly Vol Rescue Squad 15,000.00$             $268,798.94

90 11/4/2020 11/12/2020 Other (Safe Access to Government) Sheriff Haley Ford South Vehicles 43,229.18$             X $225,569.76

91 11/4/2020 11/12/2020 Other (Safe Access to Government) Sheriff Haley Ford South Vehicles 43,229.18$             X $182,340.58

92 11/4/2020 11/12/2020 Other (Safe Access to Government) Sheriff Haley Ford South Vehicles 43,229.18$             X $139,111.40

93 11/4/2020 11/12/2020 Other (Safe Access to Government) Sheriff Haley Ford South Vehicles 43,229.18$             X $95,882.22
94 11/4/2020 11/12/2020 Administration Document Systems Printer/Copier/Scanner October 99.00$  X $95,783.22
95 9/9/2020 11/12/2020 Public Health Employees Public Safety Commercial Laundry Gear Dryer for Turn-Out Gear 18,962.00$             X $76,821.22
96 9/22/2020 11/12/2020 PPE Public Safety BB&T Face Mask 1,436.80$                X $75,384.42
97 9/21/2020 11/12/2020 PPE Public Safety BB&T Face Mask 938.00$  X $74,446.42
98 10/1/2020 11/12/2020 Registrar BB&T 46.10$  X $74,400.32
99 10/16/2020 11/12/2020 Registrar BB&T Flag Coil 165.00$  X $74,235.32

100 10/19/2020 11/12/2020 Registrar BB&T 168.96$  X $74,066.36
101 10/2/2020 11/5/2020 Disinfection & Sanitation Treasurer BB&T Anti-Bacterial Surface Cleaner 75.44$  X $73,990.92

Action Items - Page 13



102 10/9/2020 11/5/2020 PPE Buildings & Grounds BB&T Sneeze Guards 1,880.89$                X $72,110.03
103 10/20/2020 11/5/2020 Safe Access to Government Buildings & Grounds BB&T Floor Scanner 4,120.00$                X $67,990.03
104 9/17/2020 10/14/2020 PPE BB&T Face Mask and Face Shield 1,147.46$                X $66,842.57
105 9/11/2020 10/14/2020 Safe Access to Government Public Safety BB&T Tables 334.78$  X $66,507.79
106 8/24/2020 10/14/2020 Disinfection & Sanitation Public Safety BB&T Sanitizer 805.58$  X $65,702.21
107 9/13/2020 10/14/2020 Safe Access to Government Registrar BB&T Tents 758.03$  X $64,944.18
108 9/14/2020 10/14/2020 Safe Access to Government Administration BB&T Sound Equipment 1,461.84$                X $63,482.34
109 9/14/2020 10/14/2020 Safe Access to Government Administration BB&T Sound Equipment 69.96$  X $63,412.38
110 9/21/2020 10/14/2020 Disinfection & Sanitation Public Safety Atlantic Emerency Solutions Disinfectant Concentrate 4,885.32$                X $58,527.06
111 9/29/2020 10/14/2020 Telework for Government Treasurer Dell Toner 324.50$  X $58,202.56
112 9/17/2020 10/14/2020 PPE Sheriff Virginia Correctional Enterprise Face Masks 244.80$  X $57,957.76
113 10/6/2020 10/14/2020 Safe Access to Government Sheriff OPTECH Thermal Scanners 3,450.00$                X $54,507.76
114 Telework for Government Administration Document Systems Printer/Copier/Scanner November 150.00$  $54,357.76
115 10/28/2020 10/29/2020 (Other) Transfers Town Allocation Town of Jarratt Town Allocation 29,604.00$             X $24,753.76
116 10/26/2020 10/29/2020 PPE Public Safety Stony Creek Vol. Rescue PPE 4,338.21$                X $20,415.55
117 County-wide VA Unemployment Unemployment Insurance 13,000.00$             $7,415.55
118 4/15/2020 4/30/2020 Disinfection & Sanitation Public Safety C. W. Williams & Co. Decon Cloth Wipes for Fire & EMS 313.62$  X $7,101.93
119 9/16/2020 10/14/2020 Safe Access to Government Administration Staples Microphone 49.99$  X $7,051.94
120 9/3/2020 10/14/2020 Safe Access to Government Administration Staples Insurance (Printer/Mic) (JE) 49.99$  X $7,001.95
121 10/10/2020 10/22/2020 Telework for Government Administration/Treas. Verizon Wireless Wireless phones 107.86$  X $6,894.09
122 9/10/2020 10/22/2020 Telework for Government Administration/Treas. Verizon Wireless Wireless phones 107.83$  X $6,786.26
123 11/10/2020 11/19/2020 Telework for Government Administration/Treas. Verizon Wireless Wireless phones 107.86$  X $6,678.40
124 9/3/2020 10/14/2020 Disinfection & Sanitation Public Safety BB&T Fog Sprayers 2,040.50$                X $4,637.90
125 9/18/2020 10/14/2020 PPE Buildings & Grounds Sam's Club Face Shields 24.95$  X $4,612.95
126 -$  $4,612.95
127 -$  $4,612.95
128 -$  $4,612.95
129 -$  $4,612.95
130 -$  $4,612.95
131 -$  $4,612.95
132 -$  $4,612.95
133 -$  $4,612.95

Total: 1,942,547.05$        

Action Items - Page 14



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Item #6.04 

Subject: Shands Energy Siting Agreement Termination 

Board Meeting Date:   December 17 2020 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   Attached for your consideration is a request from East Point Energy to terminate the 
Solar Facility Siting Agreement between Shands Energy Center and Sussex County, dated 
September 17, 2020.  East Point Energy is proposing to provide a $50,000 contribution to the 
county for fire and rescue capital projects in lieu of a siting agreement payment and has 
submitted an initial contribution of $5,000.  S  

Recommendation:  Staff recommends that this request be approved, based on a review by the 
County Attorney and given the contribution being provided at least two years in advance of 
payment under a siting agreement. 

Attachments: (1) Copy of Shands Energy Siting Agreement 
(2) Check from East Point Energy, LLC, dated 12.9.2020

============================================================================== 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board approves Shands Energy request to terminate the Solar 
Facility Siting Agreement between Shands Energy Center and Sussex County, based on a review 
by the County Attorney and given the contribution being provided at least two years in advance 
of payment under a siting agreement. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________  

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 
White ___ ___  (Tie Breaker) 

Action Items - Page 15



Sussex County – Shands Energy Center, LLC 
Solar Facility Siting Agreement 
Page 1 of 6 

9.9.20 DRAFT 

SOLAR FACILITY SITING AGREEMENT 

This Solar Facility Siting Agreement (“Agreement”), dated as of _______________, 2020 
(the “Effective Date”), is by and between Sussex County, Virginia, a political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia (the “County”) and Shands Energy Center, LLC a Virginia limited 
liability company (“Applicant”). The County and Applicant are herein each a “Party” and 
collectively, the “Parties”. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Applicant intends to develop, install, build, and operate a utility scale energy 
storage facility (“Project”) on certain parcel(s) of land identified as Sussex County Tax Map 
Parcels 64-A-23, 64-A-21 (collectively, the “Property”); 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Chapter 22, Title 15.2, Article 7.3 of the Code of Virginia titled 
“Siting of Solar Energy Facilities” Applicant and the County may enter into a siting agreement 
(“Siting Agreement”) for energy storage facilities in those census tracts which meet the eligibility 
requirements for designation as a qualified opportunity zone by the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury 
via his delegation to the Internal Revenue Service; 

WHEREAS, the Project is located in  census tract number 51183870100 within Sussex 
County, and eligible for a designation as  an opportunity zone; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to  Virginia Code § 15.2-2316.6 the Project is eligible for a Siting 
Agreement; 

WHEREAS, after negotiation between the County and the Applicant, the Parties desire to 
enter into this Agreement to mitigate certain potential impacts of the Project.  

WHEREAS, the Applicant, has agreed to the payments and financial terms contained 
herein; 

WHEREAS, the County, pursuant to the requirement of Virginia Code § 15.2-2316.8 (B), 
the County has held a public hearing in accordance with subdivision A of Virginia Code § 15.2-
2204 for the purpose of considering this Agreement, at which a majority of a quorum of the 
members of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors approved this agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to Chapter 22, Title 15.2, Article 7.3 of the Code of 
Virginia, intending to be legally bound hereby and in consideration of the mutual covenants 
contained herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the County and 
Applicant do hereby agree as follows: 

1. CUP conditions.  The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that it is subject to all
the terms and conditions contained in conditional use permit #2019-04 (“CUP”) and any other 
conditional use permit approved by the Board of Supervisors for the Project.  The CUP is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, and is hereby incorporated herein. Violation by the Applicant or by any of 

Action Items - Page 16



Sussex County – Shands Energy Center, LLC 
Solar Facility Siting Agreement 
Page 2 of 6 

9.9.20 DRAFT 

Applicant’s agents, assigns or successors in interest of any terms and conditions of the CUP or of 
any other applicable zoning requirements shall  constitute a violation of this Agreement. 

2. RESERVED.

3. Annual valuation of taxable equipment.  As a condition precedent to County
approval of this Agreement, Applicant agrees to provide County with a list of capital equipment, 
proposed to be installed. Thereafter, on an annual basis, Applicant shall provide County with any 
updates to this information.   

4. Capital Payment.   Applicant agrees to make, within one year of the Project
Commercial Operation Date, a one-time $50,000 contribution to the County for use in fire and 
rescue capital projects (the “Payment”)  Applicant agrees that by entering into this Agreement, 
pursuant to Virginia Code § 15.2-2316.6 et seq., the Payment is authorized by statute and it 
acknowledges, it is bound by law to make the Payment in accordance with this Agreement. The 
Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is fair and mutually beneficial to them both. The parties 
agree that the funding provided pursuant to this Agreement is beneficial in that it will help offset 
and mitigate any public safety potential impacts of the Project on the County, which will in turn 
also benefit Applicant.  The Payment provides a fair value to both Parties. Notwithstanding the 
above, the Payments may, in the County’s discretion, be used for any of the following purposes: 
(a) to fund the capital improvement program (CIP) of the County (b) to meet needs of the current
fiscal budget of the County, (c) supplement or establish any fund for which the County maintains
a balance policy; (d) support broadband funding, all as permitted § 15.2-2316.7.

5. Mutual Covenants.  The Applicant covenants to the County that it will pay the
County the amounts due hereunder when due in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, and 
will not seek to invalidate this Agreement, or otherwise take a position adverse to the purpose or 
validity of this Agreement.  So long as Applicant is not in breach of this Agreement during its 
term, the County covenants to the Applicant that it will not seek to invalidate this Agreement or 
otherwise take a position adverse to the purpose or validity of this Agreement.   

6. No Obligation to Develop. The Applicant has no obligation to develop the Project
and this Agreement does not require any Payments until after the Commercial Operation Date. 
Any test energy or other energy produced prior to the Commercial Operation Date shall not trigger 
payment under this paragraph. It is understood that development of the Project by Applicant is 
contingent upon a number of factors including, but not limited to, regulatory approvals, availability 
and cost of equipment and financing, and demand for renewable energy and renewable energy 
credits.  No election by the Applicant to terminate, defer, suspend or modify plans to develop the 
Project shall be deemed a default of Applicant under this Agreement. 

7. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement will be binding upon the successors and
assigns of the Applicant, and the obligations created hereunder shall be covenants running with 
the Property upon which the Project is developed.  If Applicant sells, transfers, leases or assigns 
all or substantially all of its interest in the Project or the ownership of the Applicant, this Agreement 
will automatically be assumed by and be binding on the purchaser, transferee or assignee. Upon 
such assumption, the sale, transfer, lease or assignment shall relieve the Applicant of all obligations 

Action Items - Page 17



Sussex County – Shands Energy Center, LLC 
Solar Facility Siting Agreement 
Page 3 of 6 

9.9.20 DRAFT 

and liabilities under this Agreement accruing from and after the date of sale or transfer, and the 
purchaser or transferee shall automatically become responsible under this Agreement.  The 
Applicant shall execute such documentation as reasonably requested by the County to memorialize 
the assignment and assumption by the purchaser or transferee.     

8. Memorandum of Agreement.  A memorandum of this Agreement, in a form
acceptable to the County Attorney, may be recorded in the land records of the Clerk’s Office of 
the Circuit Court of the County of Sussex, Virginia. Such recordation shall be at the Applicant’s 
sole cost and expense and shall occur as soon as reasonably practicable after the full execution of 
this Agreement.  If the Applicant chooses to not develop the Project, in its sole discretion, the 
County shall execute a release of the memorandum filed in the aforementioned Clerk’s Office.   

9. Notices. Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices required to be given or
authorized to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered or sent 
by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, by recognized overnight courier, or by commercial 
messenger to: 

Sussex County, Virginia  
20233 Thornton Square 
Sussex, Virginia 23884 
Attn: County Administrator 

Shands Energy Center, LLC
 c/o Nelson Teague     
200 Garrett Street 
Suite J 
Charlottesville, Virginia 22902

The County and Applicant, by notice given hereunder, may designate any further or different 
persons or addresses to which subsequent notices shall be sent. 

10. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue.  THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE
GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, WITHOUT REGARD TO ANY OF ITS PRINCIPLES OF 
CONFLICTS OF LAWS OR OTHER LAWS WHICH WOULD RESULT IN THE 
APPLICATION OF THE LAWS OF ANOTHER JURISDICTION.  THE PARTIES HERETO 
(A) AGREE THAT ANY SUIT, ACTION OR OTHER LEGAL PROCEEDING, AS BETWEEN
THE PARTIES HERETO, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT SHALL
BE BROUGHT AND TRIED ONLY IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF SUSSEX COUNTY,
VIRGINIA, (B) CONSENT TO THE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT IN ANY SUCH SUIT,
ACTION OR PROCEEDING, AND (C) WAIVE ANY OBJECTION WHICH ANY OF THEM
MAY HAVE TO THE LAYING OF VENUE OR ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION, OR
PROCEEDING IN SUCH COURT AND ANY CLAIM THAT ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION, OR
PROCEEDING HAS BEEN BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.  THE PARTIES
HERETO AGREE THAT A FINAL JUDGMENT IN ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION, OR
PROCEEDING SHALL BE CONCLUSIVE AND MAY BE ENFORCED IN OTHER

Action Items - Page 18



Sussex County – Shands Energy Center, LLC 
Solar Facility Siting Agreement 
Page 4 of 6 

9.9.20 DRAFT 

JURISDICTIONS BY SUIT ON THE JUDGMENT OR IN ANY OTHER MANNER 
PROVIDED BY LAW. 

11. Severability; Invalidity Clause.  Any provision of this Agreement that conflicts
with applicable law or is held to be void or unenforceable shall be ineffective to the extent of such 
conflict, voidness or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, which 
remaining provisions shall be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted under applicable law.  If, 
for any reason, including a change in applicable law, it is ever determined by any court or 
governmental authority of competent jurisdiction that this Agreement is invalid then the parties 
shall, subject to any necessary County meeting vote or procedures, undertake reasonable efforts to 
amend and or reauthorize this Agreement so as to render the invalid provisions herein lawful, valid 
and enforceable. If the Parties are unable to do so, this Agreement shall terminate as of the date of 
such determination of invalidity, and the Property and Project will thereafter be assessed and taxed 
as though this Agreement did not exist. The Parties will cooperate with each other and use 
reasonable efforts to defend against and contest any challenge to this Agreement by a third party. 

12. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and any schedules or exhibits constitute the
entire agreement and supersedes all other prior agreements and understandings, both written and 
oral, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof.  No provision of this 
Agreement can be modified, altered or amended except in a writing executed by all parties hereto. 

13. Construction. This Agreement was drafted with input by the County and the
Applicant, and no presumption shall exist against any Party.  

14. Third Party Beneficiaries.   This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Parties
hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns, and no other person shall have any 
right, benefit, priority or interest in, under or because of the existence of, this Agreement. 

15. Counterparts; Electronic Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed
simultaneously in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, 
and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. A signed copy of this Agreement 
delivered by facsimile, e-mail/PDF or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to 
have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 

Action Items - Page 19



Sussex County – Shands Energy Center, LLC 
Solar Facility Siting Agreement 
Page 5 of 6 

9.9.20 DRAFT 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
by the officers whose names appear below as of the Effective Date. 

SHANDS ENERGY CENTER, LLC 

By:   
Name: Andrew Foukal 
Title: President 

SUSSEX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

By:   
Name:  
Title: Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

Approved as to form:  

By: __________________________ 
County Attorney 

Action Items - Page 20



Sussex County – Shands Energy Center, LLC 
Solar Facility Siting Agreement 
Page 6 of 6 

9.9.20 DRAFT 

ATTACHMENT A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

Action Items - Page 21



December 9, 2020 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL AND USPS 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 
Attention: Madame Chair Susan B. Seward 
20135 Princeton Road 
Sussex, Virginia 23884 

Madame Chair Seward: 

East Point Energy, LLC, owner of Shands Energy Center, LLC (“Shands”) is pleased to 
inform you that it is able to advance the $50,000 contribution to Sussex County (the “County”) for 
use in fire and rescue capital projects (the “Payment”) that was agreed to as part of the Solar 
Facility Siting Agreement between Shands and the County dated September 17, 2020 (the 
“Agreement”).  As of the date of this letter, East Point Energy has delivered an initial donation of 
$5,000 and anticipates completion of the donation of the remaining $45,000 no later than February 
2021.  The timing of this donation is approximately 2-3 years earlier that what was agreed to in 
the Agreement. 

Shands agrees to continue its commitment to provide the County with a list of capital 
equipment proposed to be installed. Thereafter, on an annual basis, Shands shall provide the 
County with any updates to this information.    

As a result of its commitments set forth in this letter, Shands requests that the parties 
terminate the Agreement concurrent with the County’s acceptance of the initial donation.  Shands 
appreciates the support and continued opportunity to work with County on this project. 

Sincerely yours, 

Andrew Foukal 
President and CEO 

Action Items - Page 22



Action Items - Page 23



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Item #6.05 

Subject: FY21-22 Operating Budget Schedule 

Board Meeting Date:   December 17 2020 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   Attached for your consideration is a budget schedule for the upcoming FY21-22 fiscal 
year.  Changes to previous budget processes include a meeting between department 
heads/Constitutional Officers and the Board of Supervisors to discuss “big ticket” needs 
(additional personnel, vehicles/equipment, and programmatic changes that will result in new 
costs), as well as meetings with the Board of Supervisors prior to a draft budget being submitted 
for consideration, that will focus on revenues, outside funding requests, and general expenditure 
review.  The budget public hearing and possible adoption are scheduled for May 2021. 

Recommendation:  

Attachments: (1) Draft Copy of FY22 Budget Planning Schedule 

============================================================================== 
REQUESTED ACTION:   

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 
White ___ ___  (Tie Breaker) 

Action Items - Page 24



Sussex County 

Proposed FY 2022 Budget Calendar 

December 2020 Administrative Staff Meeting to discuss development of 
Operating & Capital Improvement Budgets  

December 22, 2020 Distribution of Budget Schedules to County Departments and to 
Outside Agencies with instructions from the County 
Administrator  

January - February 2020 Development of Revenue Estimates with Treasurer, 
Commissioner & Finance 

January 26, 2020 Department Budget Schedules and Outside Agency requests 
due to County Administration 

January 28, 2021 Departmental Presentations to BOS (Proposed Personnel, 
Equipment & Programmatic Changes) 

February 2021 Budget Work Sessions (County Administrator, Departments Heads, 
Finance Director) 

February – March 2021 Preparation of Proposed Operating Budget and 5-Year CIP 

March 4, 2021 Budget Work Session with BOS (Revenue) 

March 11, 2021 Budget Work Session with BOS (Expenditures) 

March 25, 2021 Budget Work Session with BOS (Outside Agencies) 

April 14, 2021 Advertise FY2022 Proposed Budget and CY2022 Tax Rates 

April 15, 2021 Present FY2022 Proposed Operating Budget and 5-Year CIP to 
BOS  

April – May 2021 Additional Budget Work Sessions if needed 

May 20, 2021 Public Hearings; Adoption of the FY2022 Operating Budget, 
FY2022 – FY2025 CIP and Calendar Year 2022 Tax Rates 

Action Items - Page 25



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Item #6.06 

Subject:  COVID-19 Municipal Utility Relief Program Utility Agreement 

Board Meeting Date:   December 17 2020 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   Attached for your consideration are agreements with the Sussex Service Authority 
and the Town of Waverly for the use of COVID-19 Municipal Utility Relief Program funds through 
the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development.  These funds are provided as 
a result of grant applications completed after discussion at the November Board of Supervisors 
meeting, which provide $103,879.88 for the Sussex Service Authority and Town of Waverly and 
$51,943.40 for the Sussex Service Authority, to cover delinquent utility accounts.  The Town 
Attorney prepared these agreements for the administration of the funds, which must be 
completed in January. 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the COVID-19 Municipal Utility Relief Program 
agreements with the Sussex Service Authority and Town of Waverly. 

Attachments: (1) Copy of Sussex Service Authority Municipal Relief Program MOU 
(2) Copy of Waverly Municipal Relief Program MOU

============================================================================== 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board approves the COVID-19 Municipal Utility Relief Program 
agreements with the Sussex Service Authority and Town of Waverly. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 
White ___ ___  (Tie Breaker) 

Action Items - Page 26



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
FOR COVID-19 MUNICIPAL UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR COVID-19 MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION (“Memorandum”) is made and entered 
into the ____ day of December, 2020, by and between the County of Sussex, Virginia (“Locality”), 
and the Sussex County Services Authority (“Authority”) (each a “Party” and jointly the “Parties”). 

BACKGROUND 

A. Federal CARES Act Funds. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic disaster, the
United States federal government enacted the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Securities 
Act of 2020 (“CARES Act”) to provide funding for numerous programs to address the COVID-19 
pandemic disaster, including $150 billion in assistance to states, local, territorial, and tribal 
governments for direct impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic disaster through the establishment of 
the Coronavirus Relief Fund (“CRF”). The Commonwealth of Virginia received approximately 
$3.1 billion as its share.  

B. Federally Authorized Uses. Section 5001 of the CARES Act provides that the CRF
may be used by state and local governments to cover costs that: (i) are necessary expenditures 
incurred due the public health emergency with respect to COVID-19; (ii) were not accounted for 
in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 for the County (except as may be 
permitted by the CRF guidelines established by the United States Department of the Treasury); 
and (iii) were incurred during the period that begins March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 
2020.   

C. Virginia’s Utility Relief Program. Consistent with the CARES Act, in November
2020 the General Assembly passed and Governor Northam signed into law the 2020 Special 
Session I Amendments to the 2020 Appropriation Act. Item 479.10 of this legislation appropriates 
$100 million from the Commonwealth’s CARES Act CRF allocation to establish a COVID-19 
Utility Relief Program (“Program”) and help provide direct assistance to utility customers with 
accounts over 30 days in arrears.  

D. Authority’s CRF Award. As a water and/or wastewater service provider and
eligible “municipal utility” within the meaning of the Program, the Authority has applied to the 
State Corporation Commission (“SCC”) for a suballocation of the appropriated funds for the 
purpose of providing direct assistance to its customers in accordance with applicable federal and 
state laws, regulations and guidance (“CRF Rules”). The Virginia Department of Housing and 
Community Development (“DHCD”) has issued an award letter to Authority (Exhibit A hereto) 
committing to funding assistance for eligible customers of the Authority in a specified amount 
(“Authority CRF Funds”).  

E. Local Implementation. The County and the Authority desire to collaborate for the
timely, effective and efficient implementation of the Program and provision of assistance to their 

Action Items - Page 27



eligible utility customers in accordance with the CRF Rules. The DHCD is responsible for assisting 
the SCC in the implementation of the Program and passing along awarded CRF funding to 
municipal utilities. On November 24, 2020, DHCD issued a guidance memorandum providing 
additional information on the COVID-19 Municipal Utility Relief Program (“DHCD Guidance”), 
which requires that the award to the Authority be disbursed through a partnering city or county 
serving as the fiscal agent with the Virginia Department of Accounts (“DOA”). The County is 
willing to serve as the required fiscal agent to facilitate assistance to eligible customers 
experiencing economic hardship due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations set forth in 
this Memorandum, including the recitals set forth above which are a material part of this 
Memorandum, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:   

1. Fiscal Agent. The County agrees to act as the Authority’s fiscal agent as required
by DHCD for the limited purpose of this Program. 

2. Joint Certification. The County, in its capacity as fiscal agent, agrees to make the
certification required by DHCD substantially in the form as shown in Exhibit B hereto (or any 
modification thereto made by DHCD and found to be agreeable by the County). 

3. Funds Pass-Through. The County agrees to transfer the Authority CRF Funds to
the Authority promptly upon the County’s receipt of such funds from DOA.  

4. Compliance and Recordkeeping by Authority. The Authority agrees to comply with
all applicable CRF Rules, U.S. Treasury guidance, and any and all other applicable state and 
federal regulations, including any audit. The Authority agrees to maintain records of its 
expenditures of the Authority CRF Funds for a period of five years and provide the County with 
copies of such records at no expense upon its request.  

5. Repayment and Indemnification by Authority. If the United States or the
Commonwealth lawfully requires repayment of some or all of the Authority CRF Funds, the 
Authority agrees to repay such amount to the County (or directly to the United States or the 
Commonwealth as applicable) for such purpose within twenty (20) days of any such requirement. 
In addition, Authority agrees to indemnify and hold the County harmless from any liability to the 
United States or the Commonwealth resulting from any act or omission of the Authority in its 
administration of the Authority CRF Funds, including as a result of any violation by the Authority 
of the CRF Rules. In the event that any suit or proceeding is brought against the County by the 
United States or the Commonwealth, the Authority, upon notice given to it by the County, will pay 
all costs of defending the County in any such action or other proceeding, including attorney’s fees. 
In the event of any settlement or any final judgment being awarded against the County, either 
independently or jointly with the Authority, the Authority will pay such settlement or judgment in 
full, pay all costs and expenses thereof, and hold the County harmless therefrom. The Authority 
shall bear no responsibility for the acts or omissions of the County or its officers or employees.  

Action Items - Page 28



6. Return of Unexpended Authority CRF Funds. If all of the Authority CRF Funds are
not expended to assist utility customers, the Authority must return all unexpended funds to the 
County no later than January 22, 2021.  

7. Acknowledgment of Required Information. In accordance with the DHCD
Guidance and related federal requirements for pass-through entities (2 C.F.R. §200.332), Authority 
hereby acknowledges receipt of Exhibit C hereto and the additional information set forth therein.  

8. Further Cooperation. The Parties shall continue to cooperate with each other as
reasonably necessary to confirm or bring about the transfers contemplated by this Agreement. 

9. Term. This Memorandum shall be in effect from the date on which it is executed
by the Parties through June 30, 2021. 

10. Governing Law; Severability. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance
with and governed for all purposes by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  If any word or 
provision of this Agreement as applied to any Party or to any circumstance is adjudged by a court 
to be invalid or unenforceable, the same shall in no way affect any other circumstance or the 
validity or enforceability of any other word or provision. 

11. Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement contains the entire integrated
agreement between the Parties as to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all previous written 
and oral negotiations, commitments, proposals and writings. No amendments may be made to this 
Agreement except by a writing signed by both Parties.  

12. Counterparts; Signatures; Copies. This Agreement may be executed in
counterparts, both of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument. A facsimile or scanned signature may substitute for and have the 
same legal effect as an original signature. Any copy of this executed Agreement made by 
photocopy, facsimile or scanner shall be considered the original for all purposes.  

13. Authorization. Each Party represents that its execution, delivery and performance
under this Agreement have been duly authorized by all necessary action on its behalf, and do not 
and will not violate any provision of its charter or enabling legislation or result in a material breach 
of or constitute a material default under any agreement, indenture, or instrument of which it is a 
party or by which it or its properties may be bound or affected.  

Action Items - Page 29



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused the execution of this 
Memorandum of Understanding as of the date first written above. 

SUSSEX COUNTY SERVICES AUTHORITY 

By: 
[NAME]________________________ 
[TITLE]________________________ 

COUNTY OF SUSSEX 

By:  
Susan B. Seward, Chair 
Board of Supervisors 
Sussex County, Virginia 

      Approved as to form: 

_______________________________ 
County Attorney 

Action Items - Page 30



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
FOR MUNICIPAL UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION  

EXHIBIT A 

CRF Award Letter 

Action Items - Page 31



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
FOR MUNICIPAL UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION 

EXHIBIT B 

DHCD Joint Certification Form 

Action Items - Page 32



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
FOR MUNICIPAL UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION BETWEEN 

EXHIBIT C 

Pass-Through Information Requirements 

The following pass-through information requirements pertaining the subaward to 
Authority (i.e., the County’s transfer of the Authority CRF Funds) are set forth below in 
satisfaction of 2 C.F.R. §200.332 and as directed by the DHCD Guidance. The Federal Award 
Identification for funds (subaward) addressed by this Memorandum is the Federal Coronavirus 
Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) / Coronavirus Relief Fund. 

(i) Subrecipient’s Name:  SUSSEX COUNTY SERVICES AUTHORITY

(ii) Subrecipient’s Unique Entity Identifier: [AUTHORITY’S DUNS NUMBER]

(iii) Federal Award Identification Number: [FROM FINAL AWARD LETTER]

(iv) Federal Award Date: [FROM FINAL AWARD LETTER]

(v) Subaward Period of Performance Start and End Date:
Start Date is Date of this Memorandum; End Date is January 29, 2021

(vi) Subaward Budget Period Start and End Date:
Start Date is Date of this Memorandum; End Date is January 29, 2021

(vii) Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this Action by the Pass-Through Entity to the
Subrecipient: $51,936.48

(viii) Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the Subrecipient by the Pass-Through
Entity Including the Current Financial Obligation: [INSERT AMOUNT FROM
AWARD LETTER ASSUMING COUNTY HAS NOT PROVIDED OTHER
FEDERAL FUNDS TO AUTHORITY] $51,936.48

(ix) Total Amount of the Federal Award Committed to the Subrecipient by the Pass-
Through Entity: [INSERT AMOUNT FROM AWARD LETTER ASSUMING
COUNTY HAS NOT PROVIDED OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS TO
AUTHORITY] $51,936.48

(x) Federal Award Project Description, as Required to be Responsive to the Federal
Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA): Coronavirus Relief Fund:
Municipal Utility Relief Program to Assist Customers

(xi) (A) Name of Federal Awarding Agency: U.S. Treasury Department

Action Items - Page 33



(B) Name of Pass-Through Entity: County of Sussex, Virginia

(C) Contact Information for Awarding Official of the Pass-Through Entity:
[INSERT]____________________________
[INSERT]____________________________
[INSERT]____________________________

(xii) Assistance Listings Number and Title (the pass-through entity must identify the dollar
amount made available under each Federal award and the Assistance Listings Number
at time of disbursement):
CFDA Number and Title: 21.09, Coronavirus Relief Funds

(xiii) Identification of Whether the Award is R&D
Not R&D Award

(xiv) Indirect Cost rate for the Federal Award (including if the de minimis rate is charged)
per §200.414:
N/A (no indirect costs can be charged by county/city or municipal utility)

Action Items - Page 34



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
FOR COVID-19 MUNICIPAL UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR COVID-19 MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION (“Memorandum”) is made and entered 
into the ____ day of December, 2020, by and between the County of Sussex, Virginia (“County”), 
and the Town of Waverly, Virginia (“Town”) (each a “Party” and jointly the “Parties”).  

BACKGROUND 

A. Federal CARES Act Funds. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic disaster, the
United States federal government enacted the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Securities 
Act of 2020 (“CARES Act”) to provide funding for numerous programs to address the COVID-19 
pandemic disaster, including $150 billion in assistance to states, local, territorial, and tribal 
governments for direct impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic disaster through the establishment of 
the Coronavirus Relief Fund (“CRF”). The Commonwealth of Virginia received approximately 
$3.1 billion as its share.  

B. Federally Authorized Uses. Section 5001 of the CARES Act provides that the CRF
may be used by state and local governments to cover costs that: (i) are necessary expenditures 
incurred due the public health emergency with respect to COVID-19; (ii) were not accounted for 
in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 for the County (except as may be 
permitted by the CRF guidelines established by the United States Department of the Treasury); 
and (iii) were incurred during the period that begins March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 
2020.   

C. Virginia’s Utility Relief Program. Consistent with the CARES Act, in November
2020 the General Assembly passed and Governor Northam signed into law the 2020 Special 
Session I Amendments to the 2020 Appropriation Act. Item 479.10 of this legislation appropriates 
$100 million from the Commonwealth’s CARES Act CRF allocation to establish a COVID-19 
Utility Relief Program (“Program”) and help provide direct assistance to utility customers with 
accounts over 30 days in arrears.  

D. Town’s CRF Award. As a water and/or wastewater service provider and eligible
“municipal utility” within the meaning of the Program, the Town has applied to the State 
Corporation Commission (“SCC”) for a suballocation of the appropriated funds for the purpose of 
providing direct assistance to its customers in accordance with applicable federal and state laws, 
regulations and guidance (“CRF Rules”). The Virginia Department of Housing and Community 
Development (“DHCD”) has issued an award letter to Town (Exhibit A hereto) committing to 
funding assistance for eligible customers of the Town in a specified amount (“Town CRF Funds”). 

E. Local Implementation. The County and the Town desire to collaborate for the
timely, effective and efficient implementation of the Program and provision of assistance to their 
eligible utility customers in accordance with the CRF Rules. The DHCD is responsible for assisting 

Action Items - Page 35



the SCC in the implementation of the Program and passing along awarded CRF funding to 
municipal utilities. On November 24, 2020, DHCD issued a guidance memorandum providing 
additional information on the COVID-19 Municipal Utility Relief Program (“DHCD Guidance”), 
which requires that the award to the Town be disbursed through a partnering city or county serving 
as the fiscal agent with the Virginia Department of Accounts (“DOA”). The County is willing to 
serve as the required fiscal agent to facilitate assistance to eligible customers experiencing 
economic hardship due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations set forth in 
this Memorandum, including the recitals set forth above which are a material part of this 
Memorandum, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:   

1. Fiscal Agent. The County agrees to act as the Town’s fiscal agent as required by
DHCD for the limited purpose of this Program. 

2. Joint Certification. The County, in its capacity as fiscal agent, agrees to make the
certification required by DHCD substantially in the form as shown in Exhibit B hereto (or any 
modification thereto made by DHCD and found to be agreeable by the County). 

3. Funds Pass-Through. The County agrees to transfer the Town CRF Funds to the
Town promptly upon the County’s receipt of such funds from DOA. 

4. Compliance and Recordkeeping by Town. The Town agrees to comply with all
applicable CRF Rules, U.S. Treasury guidance, and any and all other applicable state and federal 
regulations, including any audit. The Town agrees to maintain records of its expenditures of the 
Town CRF Funds for a period of five years and provide the County with copies of such records at 
no expense upon its request.  

5. Repayment and Indemnification by Town. If the United States or the
Commonwealth lawfully requires repayment of some or all of the Town CRF Funds, the Town 
agrees to repay such amount to the County (or directly to the United States or the Commonwealth 
as applicable) for such purpose within twenty (20) days of any such requirement. In addition, Town 
agrees to indemnify and hold the County harmless from any liability to the United States or the 
Commonwealth resulting from any act or omission of the Town in its administration of the Town 
CRF Funds, including as a result of any violation by the Town of the CRF Rules. In the event that 
any suit or proceeding is brought against the County by the United States or the Commonwealth, 
the Town, upon notice given to it by the County, will pay all costs of defending the County in any 
such action or other proceeding, including attorney’s fees. In the event of any settlement or any 
final judgment being awarded against the County, either independently or jointly with the Town, 
the Town will pay such settlement or judgment in full, pay all costs and expenses thereof, and hold 
the County harmless therefrom. The Town shall bear no responsibility for the acts or omissions of 
the County or its officers or employees.  

Action Items - Page 36



6. Return of Unexpended Town CRF Funds. If all of the Town CRF Funds are not
expended to assist utility customers, the Town must return all unexpended funds to the County no 
later than January 22, 2021.  

7. Acknowledgment of Required Information. In accordance with the DHCD
Guidance and related federal requirements for pass-through entities (2 C.F.R. §200.332), Town 
hereby acknowledges receipt of Exhibit C hereto and the additional information set forth therein.  

8. Further Cooperation. The Parties shall continue to cooperate with each other as
reasonably necessary to confirm or bring about the transfers contemplated by this Agreement. 

9. Term. This Memorandum shall be in effect from the date on which it is executed
by the Parties through June 30, 2021. 

10. Governing Law; Severability. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance
with and governed for all purposes by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  If any word or 
provision of this Agreement as applied to any Party or to any circumstance is adjudged by a court 
to be invalid or unenforceable, the same shall in no way affect any other circumstance or the 
validity or enforceability of any other word or provision. 

11. Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement contains the entire integrated
agreement between the Parties as to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all previous written 
and oral negotiations, commitments, proposals and writings. No amendments may be made to this 
Agreement except by a writing signed by both Parties.  

12. Counterparts; Signatures; Copies. This Agreement may be executed in
counterparts, both of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument. A facsimile or scanned signature may substitute for and have the 
same legal effect as an original signature. Any copy of this executed Agreement made by 
photocopy, facsimile or scanner shall be considered the original for all purposes.  

13. Authorization. Each Party represents that its execution, delivery and performance
under this Agreement have been duly authorized by all necessary action on its behalf, and do not 
and will not violate any provision of its charter or enabling legislation or result in a material breach 
of or constitute a material default under any agreement, indenture, or instrument of which it is a 
party or by which it or its properties may be bound or affected.  

Action Items - Page 37



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused the execution of this 
Memorandum of Understanding as of the date first written above. 

TOWN OF WAVERLY 

By:  
Angela McPhaul, Mayor 
Town of Waverly, Virginia 

Approved as to form: 

_______________________________ 
Town Attorney 

COUNTY OF SUSSEX 

By:  
Susan B. Seward, Chair 
Board of Supervisors 
Sussex County, Virginia 

      Approved as to form: 

_______________________________ 
County Attorney 

Action Items - Page 38



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
FOR MUNICIPAL UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION  

EXHIBIT A 

CRF Award Letter 

Action Items - Page 39



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
FOR MUNICIPAL UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION 

EXHIBIT B 

DHCD Joint Certification Form 

Action Items - Page 40



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
FOR MUNICIPAL UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION BETWEEN 

EXHIBIT C 

Pass-Through Information Requirements 

The following pass-through information requirements pertaining the subaward to Town 
(i.e., the County’s transfer of the Town CRF Funds) are set forth below in satisfaction of 2 C.F.R. 
§200.332 and as directed by the DHCD Guidance. The Federal Award Identification for funds
(subaward) addressed by this Memorandum is the Federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic
Security Act (CARES Act) / Coronavirus Relief Fund.

(i) Subrecipient’s Name:  TOWN OF WAVERLY, VIRGINIA

(ii) Subrecipient’s Unique Entity Identifier: [TOWN’S DUNS NUMBER]

(iii) Federal Award Identification Number: [FROM FINAL AWARD LETTER]

(iv) Federal Award Date: [FROM FINAL AWARD LETTER]

(v) Subaward Period of Performance Start and End Date:
Start Date is Date of this Memorandum; End Date is January 29, 2021

(vi) Subaward Budget Period Start and End Date:
Start Date is Date of this Memorandum; End Date is January 29, 2021

(vii) Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this Action by the Pass-Through Entity to the
Subrecipient: $51,936.48

(viii) Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the Subrecipient by the Pass-Through
Entity Including the Current Financial Obligation: [INSERT AMOUNT FROM
AWARD LETTER ASSUMING COUNTY HAS NOT PROVIDED OTHER
FEDERAL FUNDS TO TOWN] $51,936.48

(ix) Total Amount of the Federal Award Committed to the Subrecipient by the Pass-
Through Entity: [INSERT AMOUNT FROM AWARD LETTER ASSUMING
COUNTY HAS NOT PROVIDED OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS TO
TOWN] $51,936.48

(x) Federal Award Project Description, as Required to be Responsive to the Federal
Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA): Coronavirus Relief Fund:
Municipal Utility Relief Program to Assist Customers

(xi) (A) Name of Federal Awarding Agency: U.S. Treasury Department

Action Items - Page 41



(B) Name of Pass-Through Entity: County of Sussex, Virginia

(C) Contact Information for Awarding Official of the Pass-Through Entity:
[INSERT]____________________________
[INSERT]____________________________
[INSERT]____________________________

(xii) Assistance Listings Number and Title (the pass-through entity must identify the dollar
amount made available under each Federal award and the Assistance Listings Number
at time of disbursement):
CFDA Number and Title: 21.09, Coronavirus Relief Funds

(xiii) Identification of Whether the Award is R&D
Not R&D Award

(xiv) Indirect Cost rate for the Federal Award (including if the de minimis rate is charged)
per §200.414:
N/A (no indirect costs can be charged by county/city or municipal utility)

Action Items - Page 42



December 7, 2020 
VIA EMAIL 
Richard Douglas 
County Administrator 
Sussex County/Sussex Service Authority 

Re:   Award Letter, Guidance, and Required Certification for COVID‐19 Municipal Utility Relief Program to 
Assist Customers 

Dear Richard Douglas: 

On behalf of Governor Northam,  it gives me great pleasure  to  inform you  that Sussex County/Sussex 
Service Authority has been awarded federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES 
Act)  funds  pursuant  to  the  Appropriation  Act mandated  State  Corporation  Commission  application 
process  in  the  amount  of  $51,943.40  to  assist  with municipal  utility  customer  relief  for  all  eligible 
customers of Sussex County/Sussex Service Authority. This funding is being provided under CFDA 21.019 
– Coronavirus  Relief  Funds  (CRF).  Additional  details  concerning  this  program  including  guidance,
requirements, and several model forms are included in the following pages.

Additional  guidance  concerning  this  program  has  been  included  with  this  letter,  including  a model 
customer intake form. Please read this carefully before proceeding with additional steps. Given the tight 
timeline  for  utilization  of  these  funds  and  to  ensure  each  utility  directly  receives  these  funds  in  an 
expedited manner you must return the attached certification in partnership with a city or county that will 
act as the fiscal agent to receive the funds from the Department of Accounts (DOA) and the city or county 
will then forward funds to the municipal utility to implement the program for the utility’s customers. Once 
the project is complete, DOA will follow up regarding project outcomes and compliance. I want to reiterate 
that it is incumbent on Sussex County/Sussex Service Authority and the partnering city or county to ensure 
project expenses are properly documented and verified in case of audit. 

For questions contact DHCD staff member David Conmy at utility@dhcd.virginia.gov.  

Sincerely, 

Erik Johnston 
Director, Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development 

CC:    David Von Moll, Comptroller, Department of Accounts 
Encl:   COVID‐19 Municipal Utility  Relief  Program Guidance,  Certification  Form  and  Addendum,  and 
Model Customer Intake Form 

Action Items - Page 43



COVID‐19 MUNICIPAL UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM: 

Guidance and Required Certification 

Based on the response that the Virginia State Corporation Commission (SCC) received from your 
utility system  in the Application for Coronavirus Relief Funds (Municipal Utilities), the SCC has 
determined your award amount which is reflected in your award letter. Accordingly, the award 
letter, guidance, and required certification will serve as the next steps in facilitating this program. 

Fundamentally, the goal of this program is to assist municipal utility customers experiencing 
economic  hardship  due  to  the  COVID‐19  pandemic.  As  such,  and  because  quick  action  is 
essential in order to address the public health needs of municipal utility customers, your award 
amount must be disbursed through a partnering county or city that will serve as the fiscal agent 
with  the  Department  of  Accounts  (DOA)  disbursing  funds  and  having  responsibility  for  sub 
recipient monitoring.    Consequently, municipal  utility  systems,  especially  those  that  are  not 
directly managed by a city or a county, will need to partner with a city or county to serve as the 
fiscal agent for this program. Cities and counties may serve as the fiscal agent for more than one 
municipal  utility  system.  In  order  to  receive  your  CRF  funding  for  this  program,  the  chief 
administrative officer for the partnering city or county and the authorized official representing 
the municipal utility will be required to certify their respective organization’s participation in this 
program and its adherence to all associated CARES Act regulations. A standard certification for 
this program requiring signatures from both officials on behalf of their respective organizations 
has been included near the end of this document. 

Please note that the U.S. Treasury guidance requires attestation by utility customers of the 
COVID-19 economic hardship, which means utilities will need to collect and save these 
customer attestations before forgiving eligible arrearages.  

Any customer – with the exception of any government entity – shall be eligible for such arrearage 
assistance. Municipal utilities  are encouraged  to pay  the  full  amount of  arrearages owed by 
eligible customers that apply for arrearages owed from the March 1, 2020, through December 
30, 2020 time period. Funds can only be used to provide direct assistance to customer accounts 
over 30 days in arrears during the covered period. Municipal utilities must prioritize assistance 
first to customers with accounts over 60 days in arrears and then for accounts 30 days in arrears. 
Municipal utilities are also encouraged  to use  their discretion  to establish a maximum award 
amount for non‐residential customers to ensure the majority of the available assistance awarded 
is  not  awarded  to  large  customers. Arrearage  assistance  programs must  strive  for  equity  in 
program outreach  to all customers and  should  focus outreach efforts on COVID‐19  impacted 
customers.  

The  SCC has  calculated  the proportional  share of available  funding  for each municipal utility 
system  that  applied  by  the  SCC’s November  30th  application  deadline.  This  information was 
forwarded to DHCD, which is facilitating the award letter and certification process for municipal 
utilities and their partnering city or county. These certifications will be accepted by DHCD on a 

Action Items - Page 44



rolling basis after the date your award letter was distributed. The awarded municipal utility and 
their city or county fiscal agent will be required to certify to abide by U.S. Treasury guidance 
and other regulatory matters concerning the use of CRF funds. The intent is for this allocation 
to pass through the county or city directly to the municipal utility to serve eligible municipal 
utility customers. The municipal utility as the customer utility relief program operator should 
develop a sub agreement with the county or city fiscal agent assuring the city or county fiscal 
agent that the municipal utility will be responsible for compliance with state and federal law. 
Upon receipt by DHCD of this certification and award letter from the county/city and municipal 
utility,  the Department  of Accounts  (DOA) will  then  distribute  funds  directly  to  cities  and 
counties, which will serve as the fiscal agent on behalf of their partner municipal utility(ies). 
DOA will also be the  lead state agency working with the city or county and their partnered 
utility system(s) on monitoring to ensure compliance with the program and federal guidelines.  

All applicants must certify that all administrative expenses for direct program implementation 
and direct relief provided to eligible customer arrearages for the covered time period March 1, 
2020 – December, 30 2020 will be expended and any unspent funds returned to DOA by COB 
Friday January 29, 2021.  

Participating cities and counties may allow municipal utilities and their partners working directly 
to implement this program to utilize up to 5% of their allocation for direct administrative costs 
to support management of relief programs.  Proper recordkeeping on these administrative costs 
must also be maintained and made available for auditing purposes. 

Additionally, it is important for participating localities to refrain from providing dual benefit to 
customers who have already received some level of assistance through other existing programs 
funded by the CARES Act for the same months of arrearages. An example is to ensure business 
customers have not received utility relief for the same time period through the Rebuild Virginia 
Grant Fund or local CARES Act relief. 

Please note that approval of a CRF allocation  for purposes of this utility arrearage program 
does not represent any assurance, legal or otherwise, that the approved project complies with 
all federal guidelines related to the use of these funds. Cities and counties in addition to their 
partner municipal utility(ies) are strongly encouraged  to consult  their  legal counsel prior  to 
expending the federal CRF funds that have been awarded through this program. 

Chiefly, municipal utilities must justify and document use of CRF funds by assisting customers 
who  are  experiencing  economic  hardship  due  to  the  COVID‐19  pandemic.  Therefore,  such 
applications  will  require  self‐certification  by  municipal  utility  customers  in  order  to  be 
considered  eligible  for  arrearage  relief.  A  standard  self‐certification  form/questionnaire  is 
included near  the end of  this document  that  cities and  counties and  their partner municipal 
utility(ies) are encouraged to utilize. Documentation of self‐certification for all municipal utility 
customers  participating  in  this  program  is  required  for  state  auditing  purposes  so  please 
maintain  accurate  records  for  all  customers  receiving  support  from  the  program.  This 
certification may also be collected through other means such as over the phone  interviews or 

Action Items - Page 45



through  an  online  form  but  should  generally  be  harmonious  with  the  form/questionnaire 
provided. Utility Customers may only receive a direct payment subsidy from this award once, per 
the state budget requirement. Utilities may not direct any funds provided to new deposits, down 
payments, fees, late fees, interest charges or penalties.  

Federal CARES Act Guidance: 

It is extremely important to know and comply with all of the federal conditions that exist for CRF 
allocations. To that end, please refer to the federal guidance and frequently asked questions: 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus‐Relief‐Fund‐Guidance‐for‐State‐
Territorial‐ Local‐and‐Tribal‐Governments.pdf 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus‐Relief‐Fund‐Frequently‐Asked‐ 
Questions.pdf 

This information is routinely updated, so guidance may have changed since you last consulted 
it. 

Compliance with the federal guidance is the responsibility of the city or county submitting the 
application on behalf of a municipal utility and failure to do so could result in disallowed expenses 
requiring repayment of the associated funds to the federal government. If the city or county fails 
to repay any funds spent for nonqualifying expenses on behalf of a municipal utility as required 
by the federal government, the State Comptroller will recover such amounts from future state 
payments to the locality via the State Aid Intercept Program. Consequently, cities and counties 
are encouraged to develop agreements or memorandums of understanding  (MOU) with their 
partner municipal utility system(s) to  indemnify cities and counties  in the event the municipal 
utility system does not adhere to U.S. Treasury guidelines and consequently subjects the city or 
county to such State Aid Intercept action(s).  

In addition to the revised federal guidance, on September 2, 2020, the U.S. Treasury’s Office of 
the  Inspector  General  issued  information  related  to  reporting  and  audit  requirements. 
Information  regarding  the  audit  and  reporting  requirements  can  be  found  at  the  same  link 
provided  above.  Further,  the  State  Comptroller’s  office  (DOA)  has  sub‐recipient monitoring 
responsibilities  that will necessitate evaluation and additional correspondence with cities and 
counties regarding the use of funds. Again, cities and counties are encouraged to develop MOUs 
that will  help  establish  clarity  concerning  responsibility  and  accountability  among  all  parties 
regarding this requirement. 

As  a  reminder,  the  overarching  federal  guidance  states  that  these  funds must  be  used  for 
qualifying expenses of  state and  local governments. Specifically,  the CARES Act provides  that 
payments from the CRF may only be used to cover costs that: 

1. are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect

Action Items - Page 46



to  the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID–19); 
2. were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020,

(the date of enactment of the CARES Act) for the State or government; and
3. were  incurred  during  the  period  that  begins  on  March  1,  2020,  and  ends  on

December  30, 2020.
The federal guidance continues to state that the CRF funds can be used only for the direct costs 
associated with the response to the COVID‐19 pandemic and cannot be used to address revenue 
shortfalls. CRF funds should be considered "one time" monies and should not be used for ongoing 
services and/or base operations. Furthermore, fund payments may not be used for government 
revenue replacement, including the replacement of unpaid utility fees. Any unspent funds must 
be returned to DOA no later than COB January 29, 2021, so cities and counties working on behalf 
of  their partner municipal utility(ies) are strongly encouraged  to  factor  that deadline  into  the 
administration of their local programs.  

Required Certification 

In order to receive the CRF funding amount calculated by SCC, each city and county and their 
partner municipal utility system(s) must complete a certification  form  (also at the end of this 
document).  The certification form must be signed by the chief administrative officer for the city 
or county and  the authorized official  representing  the municipal utility partner.    In  the event 
more than one municipal utility partners with a city or county, a separate certification will be 
needed for each partnership. 

Before signing the certification, applicants are recommended to read and understand the federal 
guidance and the frequently asked questions contained in the links provided in Appendices A and 
B, respectively. The most recent information on this guidance and the frequently asked questions 
can be obtained at: 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus‐Relief‐Fund‐Guidance‐for‐State‐
Territorial‐ Local‐and‐Tribal‐Governments.pdf 

and 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus‐Relief‐Fund‐Frequently‐Asked‐ 
Questions.pdf 

Please note that the certification statement includes an acknowledgment that recipients may not 
receive reimbursement or recipients may be required to return funds to the federal government 
if it is determined that those funds were spent for purposes that do not qualify. It is important to 
understand that the burden of ensuring that all CRF funds are spent for qualifying purposes falls 
to the city or county working on behalf of the municipal utility. Again, cities and counties are 
encouraged  to  develop MOUs  that  will  help  establish  clarity  concerning  responsibility  and 
accountability among all parties regarding this requirement. 

Action Items - Page 47



Awardees are  responsible  for maintaining all necessary documentation  to ensure compliance 
with  the  federal  requirements.  The  State  Comptroller  is  responsible  for  all  sub‐recipient 
monitoring and may require additional information in the future from each city or county and/or 
their partner municipal utility system(s) to address that responsibility. 

If the federal government determines that awardees have used CRF funds for purposes that do 
not qualify, awardees must return those funds to the state promptly so that they may be returned 
to  the  federal  government. As  a  condition  of  receiving  CRF  funds,  awardees  agree  that  the 
Commonwealth can use State Aid Intercept to recover any funds from the corresponding city or 
county necessary for expenses that were not for a qualifying purpose or not for expenses incurred 
during  the eligible  time period. Consequently, cities and counties are encouraged  to develop 
agreements or memorandums of understanding (MOU) to indemnify cities and counties in the 
event the partner municipal utility system(s) does not adhere to U.S. Treasury guidelines and 
consequently subjects the city or county to such State Aid Intercept action(s).  

Submission of Certification 

The certification form on the next page contains more specific details on the responsibilities of 
the city and county and partnered municipal utility. 

The signed certification form should be submitted to DHCD through the following web portal: 
https://survey.alchemer.com/s3/6053803/COVID‐19‐Municipal‐Utility‐Relief.  Certifications will 
be accepted on a rolling basis. 

If you have any questions regarding the appropriate use of CRF funds, please refer to the U.S. 
Treasury Website  and  guidance  linked  above.  For  questions  about  this  process  or  technical 
questions about the certification form or the distribution of the funds, please first refer to the 
FAQ documents provided and then send unresolved inquiries to: utility@dhcd.virginia.gov  

Action Items - Page 48



Certification: 
(Please update the yellow highlighted fields as it pertains to your circumstances) 

CERTIFICATION for RECEIPT of CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND PAYMENTS 

by 

(CITY OR COUNTY NAME) 

on behalf of 

(MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) 

We, the undersigned, represent (CITY OR COUNTY NAME) and are working in partnership with 
(MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) (the utility), and we certify that: 

1. The intent is for this allocation to pass through the county or city directly to the municipal
utility  to  serve  all  eligible Virginia municipal  utility  customers.  The  customer  utility  relief
program operator should develop a subagreement with the county or city fiscal agent that
ensures they will be responsible for compliance with state and federal law.

2. We  have  the  authority  to  request  direct  payment,  on  behalf  of  the  utility  from  the
Commonwealth of Virginia, of revenues from the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) pursuant to
section 601(b) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001 of the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No. 116‐136, div. A, Title V (Mar. 27, 2020).

3. We understand that the Commonwealth of Virginia will rely on this certification as a material
representation in making a direct payment to the city or county.

4. The  city  or  county  and municipal  utility's  proposed  uses  of  the  funds  received  as  direct
payment from the Commonwealth of Virginia under section 601(b) of the Social Security Act
will be used only to cover those costs that:
a. are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect

to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID‐19);
b. were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020,

for the utility; and
c. were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 

30, 2020.
5. Any  funds that are not expended or that will not be expended on necessary expenditures

incurred  before  December  30,  2020,  by  the municipal  utility  or  its  grantee(s), must  be
returned  to  Commonwealth  of  Virginia  no  later  than  January  29,  2021,  and  that  the
Commonwealth  of  Virginia  is  entitled  to  invoke  State  Aid  Intercept  to  recover  any  such
unexpended funds.

6. We  understand  that  customer  attestations  of  the  COVID‐19  economic  hardship must  be
obtained and saved by the utility relief program before forgiving arrearages.

7. We  understand  that  the  municipal  utility  will  not  receive  continued  funding  beyond

Action Items - Page 49



December 30, 2020, from any source to continue paying expenses or providing services that 
were initiated or previously supported from CRF funds prior to December 30, 2020. 

8. Funds  received as a direct payment  from  the Commonwealth of Virginia pursuant  to  this
certification must adhere to official federal guidance issued or to be issued regarding what
constitutes a necessary expenditure.

9. Up  to  five  percent  of  funds  allocated  to  individual  localities  may  be  used  for  direct
administrative costs to support management of the utility relief programs.

10. Any CRF funds expended by the municipal utility or its grantee(s) in any manner that does not
adhere  to official  federal guidance or COVID‐19 Municipal Utility Relief Program guidance
shall  be  returned  to  the Commonwealth  of Virginia within  30  days  of  a  finding  that  the
expenditure is disallowed, and that the Commonwealth of Virginia is entitled to invoke State
Aid  Intercept on  the city or county  serving as  fiscal agent  to  the partner municipal utility
system to recover any and all such funds that are not repaid within 30 days of a finding that
the expenditure is disallowed.

11. As a condition of receiving the CRF funds pursuant to this certification, the city or county on
behalf of  the municipal utility system shall  retain documentation of all uses of  the  funds,
including but not limited to payroll time records, invoices, direct administrative costs, and/or
sales receipts. Such documentation shall be produced to the Commonwealth of Virginia upon
request.

12. The city or county on behalf of the municipal utility system must maintain proper accounting
records to segregate these expenditures  from those supported by other  fund sources and
that all such records will be subject to audit.

13. Any funds provided pursuant to this certification cannot be used as a revenue replacement
for lower than expected revenue collections from taxes, fees, or any other revenue source.

14. Fund  payments  may  not  be  used  for  government revenue replacement,  including  the
replacement of unpaid municipal utility fees.

15. Any CRF funds received pursuant to this certification will not be used for expenditures for
which  the  municipal  utility  and  its  subrecipients  have  received  funds  from  any  other
emergency COVID‐19 supplemental funding (whether state, federal, or private in nature) for
that same expense nor may CRF funds be used for purposes of matching other federal funds
unless specifically authorized by federal statute, regulation, or guideline.

Action Items - Page 50



We certify that we have read the above certification and our statements contained herein are 
true and correct to the best of our knowledge. 

City or  County  Chief Administrative Officer
(CAO)  

Authorized Official Representing Municipal 
Utility Allocated Funds by SCC 

Name of City or County:  Name of Municipal Utility: 

Printed Name of CAO:  Printed Name of Municipal Utility Official: 

Signature:  Signature: 

Title:  Title: 

Date:  Date: 

Please provide city/county DUNS number:__________________________  

Please provide municipal utility DUNS number: ______________________ 

Action Items - Page 51



Certification Addendum 
(Please update the yellow highlighted fields as it pertains to your circumstances) 

Federal Requirements for information to be included in agreement between county/city and municipal 

utility 

§200.332   Requirements for pass‐through entities.

All pass‐through entities must: 

(a) Ensure that every subaward is clearly identified to the subrecipient as a subaward and includes
the following information at the time of the subaward and if any of these data elements change, include 
the changes in subsequent subaward modification. When some of this information is not available, the 
pass‐through entity must provide the best information available to describe the Federal award and 
subaward. Required information includes: 

(1) Federal award identification. (Federal Coronavirus Aid. Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES
ACT, Coronavirus Relief Fund)) 

(i) Subrecipient name (which must match the name associated with its unique entity identifier);
(Name of Municipal Utility with SCC allocation) 

(ii) Subrecipient's unique entity identifier; (Municipal Utility’s DUNS number. If municipal utility
does not have, please note) 

(iii) Subaward Period of Performance Start and End Date; (Determined by city/county and utility
given program start date and January 29, 2021, deadline to return funds) 

(iv) Subaward Budget Period Start and End Date; (Determined by city/county and utility given
program start date and January 29, 2021, deadline to return funds) 

(v) Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this action by the pass‐through entity to the
subrecipient; (Amount in final award letter) 

(vi) Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the subrecipient by the pass‐through entity
including the current financial obligation; (Amount in allocation letter plus any other federal grant to 
from county/city to the utility) 

(vii) Total Amount of the Federal Award committed to the subrecipient by the pass‐through entity;
(Amount in final award letter plus any other federal grant to from county/city to the utility) 

(viii) Federal award project description, as required to be responsive to the Federal Funding
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA); (Coronavirus Relief Fund: Municipal Utility Relief Program 
to Assist Customers) 

Action Items - Page 52



(ix) Name of Federal awarding agency, pass‐through entity, and contact information for awarding
official of the Pass‐through entity;(U.S. Treasury Department/County or City/Contact for County or City 
Awarding Official) 

(x) Assistance Listings number and Title; the pass‐through entity must identify the dollar amount
made available under each Federal award and the Assistance Listings Number at time of disbursement; 
(CFDA Number and Title are 21.09, Coronavirus Relief Funds) 

(xi) Identification of whether the award is R&D; and (This is not R&D award)

(xii) Indirect cost rate for the Federal award (including if the de minimis rate is charged) per
§200.414. (No indirect costs can be charged by county/city or municipal utility)

Action Items - Page 53



Appendix A is available at: https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus‐Relief‐Fund‐
Guidance‐for‐State‐Territorial‐ Local‐and‐Tribal‐Governments.pdf 

Appendix B is available at: https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus‐Relief‐Fund‐
Frequently‐Asked‐ Questions.pdf 

Action Items - Page 54



GENERAL INFORMATION 

1. Date of Customer’s Application:____________________________
2. Account Number or Other Unique Identifier of the Customer Utility Bill: __________________
3. Total Arrearage from March 1, 2020 –  December 30, 2020 that is due (Provided by Municipal

Utility with statement demonstrating amount attached):______________________________
4. Street Address (where utility service is provided):

5. City or County (where utility service is provided):
6. State (where utility service is provided):
7. ZIP Code (where utility service is provided):
8. Customer Phone Number:
9. Customer Type:

_____ Residential

_____ Non‐Residential

RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS COMPLETE THIS SECTION 

1. Name of Residential Account Holder:

_____________________________________  

    First    M.I.    Last (Maiden)  

2. For residential customers: place mark beside the applicable cause of economic hardship if you

or a person in your household has experienced a loss of income due to the COVID‐19

pandemic (check all that apply):

 _____ been laid off;  

 _____ place of employment has closed;  

 _____ have experienced a reduction in hours of work;  

 _____ must stay home to care for children due to closure of day care and/or school;  

 _____ lost child or spousal support;  

COVID‐19 MUNICIPAL UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM 

Utility Arrearage Assistance 

Model Customer Intake Form 

Action Items - Page 55



 _____ not been able to work or missed hours due to contracting COVID‐19;  

 _____ unable to find work due to COVID‐19; 

 _____ unwilling/unable to participate in previous employment due to high risk of severe 

illness from COVID‐19 

  _____   other (describe) _______________________________________________________ 

NON‐RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS COMPLETE THIS SECTION 

1. Name of Non‐Residential Account Holder: _____________________________________
2. Property Name:__________________________

3. Is the utility fee arrearage due to economic hardship experienced by the customer as a result of

the COVID‐19 pandemic? (Check Y/N)

4. ____ YES (Eligible for relief; provide explanation below.)

5. ____ NO (Not eligible for relief.)

6. Provide an explanation of the COVID‐19 related economic hardship:

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

CARES Act assistance application may:  

- Assist for bills dated March 1, 2020, to December 30, 2020, and may not be used for

past due amounts prior to this time period or after this time period.

- Funding is designed to be a one‐time opportunity, with only one payment per

household (for residential) or account holder and their successors (for non‐

residential).

- Funding can be used for the following bills:

_____ Water 

_____ Wastewater 

_____ Electric 

_____ Gas 

Applicant’s Certification:  

- I desire to receive any assistance to which I am legally entitled under this program and its specifications.

- I certify that the reason I am eligible for this CARES Act assistance is correct to the best of my knowledge and

belief.

- I understand that my signature on this form gives permission for the staff at (insert name of city or county and

municipal utility) to verify records as necessary to verify my eligibility for assistance. 

Action Items - Page 56



- I declare to the best of my knowledge that: 

o (1) for residential applicants: I am the only person living in the household at the address shown on this

form who has applied for this assistance, or

o (2) for non‐residential applicants: I am the only person who has applied for/on behalf of the non‐

residential account holder, including their successors, at the address shown on this form and that I am

not a government account holder.

- I certify that this customer has not received CARES act relief for any of the arrearages I am applying for from any

other source including Rebuild VA Grants. 

- I understand that if I give false information or withhold information in order to make myself eligible for benefits

that I am not entitled to or apply for assistance at more than one site, I can be prosecuted for fraud and/or

denied assistance in the future.

- I understand that the agencies involved in this program may verify all of the information which I have provided. 

- I understand and my signature on this form gives permission to (insert name of municipal utility) to which I am

applying to verify information concerning my need for assistance.

- Others?

___________________________________________________  _______________________________________________ 

Printed Name   Signature 

___________________________________________________ 

Title (for non‐residential account holders) 

Municipal Utility Intake Information:  ACTION TAKEN    Screener   Date____

Action Items - Page 57



December 7, 2020 
VIA EMAIL 
Richard Douglas 
County Administrator 
Sussex County/Town of Waverly/Sussex Service Authority 

Re:   Award Letter, Guidance, and Required Certification for COVID‐19 Municipal Utility Relief Program to 
Assist Customers 

Dear Richard Douglas: 

On behalf of Governor Northam,  it gives me great pleasure to  inform you that Sussex County/Town of 
Waverly/Sussex  Service  Authority  has  been  awarded  federal  Coronavirus  Aid,  Relief,  and  Economic 
Security  Act  (CARES  Act)  funds  pursuant  to  the  Appropriation  Act  mandated  State  Corporation 
Commission application process in the amount of $103,879.88 to assist with municipal utility customer 
relief for all eligible customers of Sussex County/Town of Waverly/Sussex Service Authority. This funding 
is being provided under CFDA 21.019 – Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF). Additional details concerning this 
program including guidance, requirements, and several model forms are included in the following pages. 

Additional  guidance  concerning  this  program  has  been  included  with  this  letter,  including  a model 
customer intake form. Please read this carefully before proceeding with additional steps. Given the tight 
timeline  for  utilization  of  these  funds  and  to  ensure  each  utility  directly  receives  these  funds  in  an 
expedited manner you must return the attached certification in partnership with a city or county that will 
act as the fiscal agent to receive the funds from the Department of Accounts (DOA) and the city or county 
will then forward funds to the municipal utility to implement the program for the utility’s customers. Once 
the project is complete, DOA will follow up regarding project outcomes and compliance. I want to reiterate 
that it is incumbent on Sussex County/Town of Waverly/Sussex Service Authority and the partnering city 
or county to ensure project expenses are properly documented and verified in case of audit. 

For questions contact DHCD staff member David Conmy at utility@dhcd.virginia.gov.  

Sincerely, 

Erik Johnston 
Director, Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development 

CC:    David Von Moll, Comptroller, Department of Accounts 
Encl:   COVID‐19 Municipal Utility  Relief  Program Guidance,  Certification  Form  and  Addendum,  and 
Model Customer Intake Form 

Action Items - Page 58



COVID‐19 MUNICIPAL UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM: 

Guidance and Required Certification 

Based on the response that the Virginia State Corporation Commission (SCC) received from your 
utility system  in the Application for Coronavirus Relief Funds (Municipal Utilities), the SCC has 
determined your award amount which is reflected in your award letter. Accordingly, the award 
letter, guidance, and required certification will serve as the next steps in facilitating this program. 

Fundamentally, the goal of this program is to assist municipal utility customers experiencing 
economic  hardship  due  to  the  COVID‐19  pandemic.  As  such,  and  because  quick  action  is 
essential in order to address the public health needs of municipal utility customers, your award 
amount must be disbursed through a partnering county or city that will serve as the fiscal agent 
with  the  Department  of  Accounts  (DOA)  disbursing  funds  and  having  responsibility  for  sub 
recipient monitoring.    Consequently, municipal  utility  systems,  especially  those  that  are  not 
directly managed by a city or a county, will need to partner with a city or county to serve as the 
fiscal agent for this program. Cities and counties may serve as the fiscal agent for more than one 
municipal  utility  system.  In  order  to  receive  your  CRF  funding  for  this  program,  the  chief 
administrative officer for the partnering city or county and the authorized official representing 
the municipal utility will be required to certify their respective organization’s participation in this 
program and its adherence to all associated CARES Act regulations. A standard certification for 
this program requiring signatures from both officials on behalf of their respective organizations 
has been included near the end of this document. 

Please note that the U.S. Treasury guidance requires attestation by utility customers of the 
COVID-19 economic hardship, which means utilities will need to collect and save these 
customer attestations before forgiving eligible arrearages.  

Any customer – with the exception of any government entity – shall be eligible for such arrearage 
assistance. Municipal utilities  are encouraged  to pay  the  full  amount of  arrearages owed by 
eligible customers that apply for arrearages owed from the March 1, 2020, through December 
30, 2020 time period. Funds can only be used to provide direct assistance to customer accounts 
over 30 days in arrears during the covered period. Municipal utilities must prioritize assistance 
first to customers with accounts over 60 days in arrears and then for accounts 30 days in arrears. 
Municipal utilities are also encouraged  to use  their discretion  to establish a maximum award 
amount for non‐residential customers to ensure the majority of the available assistance awarded 
is  not  awarded  to  large  customers. Arrearage  assistance  programs must  strive  for  equity  in 
program outreach  to all customers and  should  focus outreach efforts on COVID‐19  impacted 
customers.  

The  SCC has  calculated  the proportional  share of available  funding  for each municipal utility 
system  that  applied  by  the  SCC’s November  30th  application  deadline.  This  information was 
forwarded to DHCD, which is facilitating the award letter and certification process for municipal 
utilities and their partnering city or county. These certifications will be accepted by DHCD on a 

Action Items - Page 59



rolling basis after the date your award letter was distributed. The awarded municipal utility and 
their city or county fiscal agent will be required to certify to abide by U.S. Treasury guidance 
and other regulatory matters concerning the use of CRF funds. The intent is for this allocation 
to pass through the county or city directly to the municipal utility to serve eligible municipal 
utility customers. The municipal utility as the customer utility relief program operator should 
develop a sub agreement with the county or city fiscal agent assuring the city or county fiscal 
agent that the municipal utility will be responsible for compliance with state and federal law. 
Upon receipt by DHCD of this certification and award letter from the county/city and municipal 
utility,  the Department  of Accounts  (DOA) will  then  distribute  funds  directly  to  cities  and 
counties, which will serve as the fiscal agent on behalf of their partner municipal utility(ies). 
DOA will also be the  lead state agency working with the city or county and their partnered 
utility system(s) on monitoring to ensure compliance with the program and federal guidelines.  

All applicants must certify that all administrative expenses for direct program implementation 
and direct relief provided to eligible customer arrearages for the covered time period March 1, 
2020 – December, 30 2020 will be expended and any unspent funds returned to DOA by COB 
Friday January 29, 2021.  

Participating cities and counties may allow municipal utilities and their partners working directly 
to implement this program to utilize up to 5% of their allocation for direct administrative costs 
to support management of relief programs.  Proper recordkeeping on these administrative costs 
must also be maintained and made available for auditing purposes. 

Additionally, it is important for participating localities to refrain from providing dual benefit to 
customers who have already received some level of assistance through other existing programs 
funded by the CARES Act for the same months of arrearages. An example is to ensure business 
customers have not received utility relief for the same time period through the Rebuild Virginia 
Grant Fund or local CARES Act relief. 

Please note that approval of a CRF allocation  for purposes of this utility arrearage program 
does not represent any assurance, legal or otherwise, that the approved project complies with 
all federal guidelines related to the use of these funds. Cities and counties in addition to their 
partner municipal utility(ies) are strongly encouraged  to consult  their  legal counsel prior  to 
expending the federal CRF funds that have been awarded through this program. 

Chiefly, municipal utilities must justify and document use of CRF funds by assisting customers 
who  are  experiencing  economic  hardship  due  to  the  COVID‐19  pandemic.  Therefore,  such 
applications  will  require  self‐certification  by  municipal  utility  customers  in  order  to  be 
considered  eligible  for  arrearage  relief.  A  standard  self‐certification  form/questionnaire  is 
included near  the end of  this document  that  cities and  counties and  their partner municipal 
utility(ies) are encouraged to utilize. Documentation of self‐certification for all municipal utility 
customers  participating  in  this  program  is  required  for  state  auditing  purposes  so  please 
maintain  accurate  records  for  all  customers  receiving  support  from  the  program.  This 
certification may also be collected through other means such as over the phone  interviews or 

Action Items - Page 60



through  an  online  form  but  should  generally  be  harmonious  with  the  form/questionnaire 
provided. Utility Customers may only receive a direct payment subsidy from this award once, per 
the state budget requirement. Utilities may not direct any funds provided to new deposits, down 
payments, fees, late fees, interest charges or penalties.  

Federal CARES Act Guidance: 

It is extremely important to know and comply with all of the federal conditions that exist for CRF 
allocations. To that end, please refer to the federal guidance and frequently asked questions: 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus‐Relief‐Fund‐Guidance‐for‐State‐
Territorial‐ Local‐and‐Tribal‐Governments.pdf 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus‐Relief‐Fund‐Frequently‐Asked‐ 
Questions.pdf 

This information is routinely updated, so guidance may have changed since you last consulted 
it. 

Compliance with the federal guidance is the responsibility of the city or county submitting the 
application on behalf of a municipal utility and failure to do so could result in disallowed expenses 
requiring repayment of the associated funds to the federal government. If the city or county fails 
to repay any funds spent for nonqualifying expenses on behalf of a municipal utility as required 
by the federal government, the State Comptroller will recover such amounts from future state 
payments to the locality via the State Aid Intercept Program. Consequently, cities and counties 
are encouraged to develop agreements or memorandums of understanding  (MOU) with their 
partner municipal utility system(s) to  indemnify cities and counties  in the event the municipal 
utility system does not adhere to U.S. Treasury guidelines and consequently subjects the city or 
county to such State Aid Intercept action(s).  

In addition to the revised federal guidance, on September 2, 2020, the U.S. Treasury’s Office of 
the  Inspector  General  issued  information  related  to  reporting  and  audit  requirements. 
Information  regarding  the  audit  and  reporting  requirements  can  be  found  at  the  same  link 
provided  above.  Further,  the  State  Comptroller’s  office  (DOA)  has  sub‐recipient monitoring 
responsibilities  that will necessitate evaluation and additional correspondence with cities and 
counties regarding the use of funds. Again, cities and counties are encouraged to develop MOUs 
that will  help  establish  clarity  concerning  responsibility  and  accountability  among  all  parties 
regarding this requirement. 

As  a  reminder,  the  overarching  federal  guidance  states  that  these  funds must  be  used  for 
qualifying expenses of  state and  local governments. Specifically,  the CARES Act provides  that 
payments from the CRF may only be used to cover costs that: 

1. are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect

Action Items - Page 61



to  the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID–19); 
2. were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020,

(the date of enactment of the CARES Act) for the State or government; and
3. were  incurred  during  the  period  that  begins  on  March  1,  2020,  and  ends  on

December  30, 2020.
The federal guidance continues to state that the CRF funds can be used only for the direct costs 
associated with the response to the COVID‐19 pandemic and cannot be used to address revenue 
shortfalls. CRF funds should be considered "one time" monies and should not be used for ongoing 
services and/or base operations. Furthermore, fund payments may not be used for government 
revenue replacement, including the replacement of unpaid utility fees. Any unspent funds must 
be returned to DOA no later than COB January 29, 2021, so cities and counties working on behalf 
of  their partner municipal utility(ies) are strongly encouraged  to  factor  that deadline  into  the 
administration of their local programs.  

Required Certification 

In order to receive the CRF funding amount calculated by SCC, each city and county and their 
partner municipal utility system(s) must complete a certification  form  (also at the end of this 
document).  The certification form must be signed by the chief administrative officer for the city 
or county and  the authorized official  representing  the municipal utility partner.    In  the event 
more than one municipal utility partners with a city or county, a separate certification will be 
needed for each partnership. 

Before signing the certification, applicants are recommended to read and understand the federal 
guidance and the frequently asked questions contained in the links provided in Appendices A and 
B, respectively. The most recent information on this guidance and the frequently asked questions 
can be obtained at: 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus‐Relief‐Fund‐Guidance‐for‐State‐
Territorial‐ Local‐and‐Tribal‐Governments.pdf 

and 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus‐Relief‐Fund‐Frequently‐Asked‐ 
Questions.pdf 

Please note that the certification statement includes an acknowledgment that recipients may not 
receive reimbursement or recipients may be required to return funds to the federal government 
if it is determined that those funds were spent for purposes that do not qualify. It is important to 
understand that the burden of ensuring that all CRF funds are spent for qualifying purposes falls 
to the city or county working on behalf of the municipal utility. Again, cities and counties are 
encouraged  to  develop MOUs  that  will  help  establish  clarity  concerning  responsibility  and 
accountability among all parties regarding this requirement. 

Action Items - Page 62



Awardees are  responsible  for maintaining all necessary documentation  to ensure compliance 
with  the  federal  requirements.  The  State  Comptroller  is  responsible  for  all  sub‐recipient 
monitoring and may require additional information in the future from each city or county and/or 
their partner municipal utility system(s) to address that responsibility. 

If the federal government determines that awardees have used CRF funds for purposes that do 
not qualify, awardees must return those funds to the state promptly so that they may be returned 
to  the  federal  government. As  a  condition  of  receiving  CRF  funds,  awardees  agree  that  the 
Commonwealth can use State Aid Intercept to recover any funds from the corresponding city or 
county necessary for expenses that were not for a qualifying purpose or not for expenses incurred 
during  the eligible  time period. Consequently, cities and counties are encouraged  to develop 
agreements or memorandums of understanding (MOU) to indemnify cities and counties in the 
event the partner municipal utility system(s) does not adhere to U.S. Treasury guidelines and 
consequently subjects the city or county to such State Aid Intercept action(s).  

Submission of Certification 

The certification form on the next page contains more specific details on the responsibilities of 
the city and county and partnered municipal utility. 

The signed certification form should be submitted to DHCD through the following web portal: 
https://survey.alchemer.com/s3/6053803/COVID‐19‐Municipal‐Utility‐Relief.  Certifications will 
be accepted on a rolling basis. 

If you have any questions regarding the appropriate use of CRF funds, please refer to the U.S. 
Treasury Website  and  guidance  linked  above.  For  questions  about  this  process  or  technical 
questions about the certification form or the distribution of the funds, please first refer to the 
FAQ documents provided and then send unresolved inquiries to: utility@dhcd.virginia.gov  

Action Items - Page 63



Certification: 
(Please update the yellow highlighted fields as it pertains to your circumstances) 

CERTIFICATION for RECEIPT of CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND PAYMENTS 

by 

(CITY OR COUNTY NAME) 

on behalf of 

(MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) 

We, the undersigned, represent (CITY OR COUNTY NAME) and are working in partnership with 
(MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) (the utility), and we certify that: 

1. The intent is for this allocation to pass through the county or city directly to the municipal
utility  to  serve  all  eligible Virginia municipal  utility  customers.  The  customer  utility  relief
program operator should develop a subagreement with the county or city fiscal agent that
ensures they will be responsible for compliance with state and federal law.

2. We  have  the  authority  to  request  direct  payment,  on  behalf  of  the  utility  from  the
Commonwealth of Virginia, of revenues from the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) pursuant to
section 601(b) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001 of the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No. 116‐136, div. A, Title V (Mar. 27, 2020).

3. We understand that the Commonwealth of Virginia will rely on this certification as a material
representation in making a direct payment to the city or county.

4. The  city  or  county  and municipal  utility's  proposed  uses  of  the  funds  received  as  direct
payment from the Commonwealth of Virginia under section 601(b) of the Social Security Act
will be used only to cover those costs that:
a. are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect

to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID‐19);
b. were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020,

for the utility; and
c. were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 

30, 2020.
5. Any  funds that are not expended or that will not be expended on necessary expenditures

incurred  before  December  30,  2020,  by  the municipal  utility  or  its  grantee(s), must  be
returned  to  Commonwealth  of  Virginia  no  later  than  January  29,  2021,  and  that  the
Commonwealth  of  Virginia  is  entitled  to  invoke  State  Aid  Intercept  to  recover  any  such
unexpended funds.

6. We  understand  that  customer  attestations  of  the  COVID‐19  economic  hardship must  be
obtained and saved by the utility relief program before forgiving arrearages.

7. We  understand  that  the  municipal  utility  will  not  receive  continued  funding  beyond

Action Items - Page 64



December 30, 2020, from any source to continue paying expenses or providing services that 
were initiated or previously supported from CRF funds prior to December 30, 2020. 

8. Funds  received as a direct payment  from  the Commonwealth of Virginia pursuant  to  this
certification must adhere to official federal guidance issued or to be issued regarding what
constitutes a necessary expenditure.

9. Up  to  five  percent  of  funds  allocated  to  individual  localities  may  be  used  for  direct
administrative costs to support management of the utility relief programs.

10. Any CRF funds expended by the municipal utility or its grantee(s) in any manner that does not
adhere  to official  federal guidance or COVID‐19 Municipal Utility Relief Program guidance
shall  be  returned  to  the Commonwealth  of Virginia within  30  days  of  a  finding  that  the
expenditure is disallowed, and that the Commonwealth of Virginia is entitled to invoke State
Aid  Intercept on  the city or county  serving as  fiscal agent  to  the partner municipal utility
system to recover any and all such funds that are not repaid within 30 days of a finding that
the expenditure is disallowed.

11. As a condition of receiving the CRF funds pursuant to this certification, the city or county on
behalf of  the municipal utility system shall  retain documentation of all uses of  the  funds,
including but not limited to payroll time records, invoices, direct administrative costs, and/or
sales receipts. Such documentation shall be produced to the Commonwealth of Virginia upon
request.

12. The city or county on behalf of the municipal utility system must maintain proper accounting
records to segregate these expenditures  from those supported by other  fund sources and
that all such records will be subject to audit.

13. Any funds provided pursuant to this certification cannot be used as a revenue replacement
for lower than expected revenue collections from taxes, fees, or any other revenue source.

14. Fund  payments  may  not  be  used  for  government revenue replacement,  including  the
replacement of unpaid municipal utility fees.

15. Any CRF funds received pursuant to this certification will not be used for expenditures for
which  the  municipal  utility  and  its  subrecipients  have  received  funds  from  any  other
emergency COVID‐19 supplemental funding (whether state, federal, or private in nature) for
that same expense nor may CRF funds be used for purposes of matching other federal funds
unless specifically authorized by federal statute, regulation, or guideline.

Action Items - Page 65



We certify that we have read the above certification and our statements contained herein are 
true and correct to the best of our knowledge. 

City or  County  Chief Administrative Officer
(CAO)  

Authorized Official Representing Municipal 
Utility Allocated Funds by SCC 

Name of City or County:  Name of Municipal Utility: 

Printed Name of CAO:  Printed Name of Municipal Utility Official: 

Signature:  Signature: 

Title:  Title: 

Date:  Date: 

Please provide city/county DUNS number:__________________________  

Please provide municipal utility DUNS number: ______________________ 

Action Items - Page 66



Certification Addendum 
(Please update the yellow highlighted fields as it pertains to your circumstances) 

Federal Requirements for information to be included in agreement between county/city and municipal 

utility 

§200.332   Requirements for pass‐through entities.

All pass‐through entities must: 

(a) Ensure that every subaward is clearly identified to the subrecipient as a subaward and includes
the following information at the time of the subaward and if any of these data elements change, include 
the changes in subsequent subaward modification. When some of this information is not available, the 
pass‐through entity must provide the best information available to describe the Federal award and 
subaward. Required information includes: 

(1) Federal award identification. (Federal Coronavirus Aid. Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES
ACT, Coronavirus Relief Fund)) 

(i) Subrecipient name (which must match the name associated with its unique entity identifier);
(Name of Municipal Utility with SCC allocation) 

(ii) Subrecipient's unique entity identifier; (Municipal Utility’s DUNS number. If municipal utility
does not have, please note) 

(iii) Subaward Period of Performance Start and End Date; (Determined by city/county and utility
given program start date and January 29, 2021, deadline to return funds) 

(iv) Subaward Budget Period Start and End Date; (Determined by city/county and utility given
program start date and January 29, 2021, deadline to return funds) 

(v) Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this action by the pass‐through entity to the
subrecipient; (Amount in final award letter) 

(vi) Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the subrecipient by the pass‐through entity
including the current financial obligation; (Amount in allocation letter plus any other federal grant to 
from county/city to the utility) 

(vii) Total Amount of the Federal Award committed to the subrecipient by the pass‐through entity;
(Amount in final award letter plus any other federal grant to from county/city to the utility) 

(viii) Federal award project description, as required to be responsive to the Federal Funding
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA); (Coronavirus Relief Fund: Municipal Utility Relief Program 
to Assist Customers) 

Action Items - Page 67



(ix) Name of Federal awarding agency, pass‐through entity, and contact information for awarding
official of the Pass‐through entity;(U.S. Treasury Department/County or City/Contact for County or City 
Awarding Official) 

(x) Assistance Listings number and Title; the pass‐through entity must identify the dollar amount
made available under each Federal award and the Assistance Listings Number at time of disbursement; 
(CFDA Number and Title are 21.09, Coronavirus Relief Funds) 

(xi) Identification of whether the award is R&D; and (This is not R&D award)

(xii) Indirect cost rate for the Federal award (including if the de minimis rate is charged) per
§200.414. (No indirect costs can be charged by county/city or municipal utility)

Action Items - Page 68



Appendix A is available at: https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus‐Relief‐Fund‐
Guidance‐for‐State‐Territorial‐ Local‐and‐Tribal‐Governments.pdf 

Appendix B is available at: https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus‐Relief‐Fund‐
Frequently‐Asked‐ Questions.pdf 

Action Items - Page 69



GENERAL INFORMATION 

1. Date of Customer’s Application:____________________________
2. Account Number or Other Unique Identifier of the Customer Utility Bill: __________________
3. Total Arrearage from March 1, 2020 –  December 30, 2020 that is due (Provided by Municipal

Utility with statement demonstrating amount attached):______________________________
4. Street Address (where utility service is provided):

5. City or County (where utility service is provided):
6. State (where utility service is provided):
7. ZIP Code (where utility service is provided):
8. Customer Phone Number:
9. Customer Type:

_____ Residential

_____ Non‐Residential

RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS COMPLETE THIS SECTION 

1. Name of Residential Account Holder:

_____________________________________  

    First    M.I.    Last (Maiden)  

2. For residential customers: place mark beside the applicable cause of economic hardship if you

or a person in your household has experienced a loss of income due to the COVID‐19

pandemic (check all that apply):

 _____ been laid off;  

 _____ place of employment has closed;  

 _____ have experienced a reduction in hours of work;  

 _____ must stay home to care for children due to closure of day care and/or school;  

 _____ lost child or spousal support;  

COVID‐19 MUNICIPAL UTILITY RELIEF PROGRAM 

Utility Arrearage Assistance 

Model Customer Intake Form 

Action Items - Page 70



 _____ not been able to work or missed hours due to contracting COVID‐19;  

 _____ unable to find work due to COVID‐19; 

 _____ unwilling/unable to participate in previous employment due to high risk of severe 

illness from COVID‐19 

  _____   other (describe) _______________________________________________________ 

NON‐RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS COMPLETE THIS SECTION 

1. Name of Non‐Residential Account Holder: _____________________________________
2. Property Name:__________________________

3. Is the utility fee arrearage due to economic hardship experienced by the customer as a result of

the COVID‐19 pandemic? (Check Y/N)

4. ____ YES (Eligible for relief; provide explanation below.)

5. ____ NO (Not eligible for relief.)

6. Provide an explanation of the COVID‐19 related economic hardship:

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

CARES Act assistance application may:  

- Assist for bills dated March 1, 2020, to December 30, 2020, and may not be used for

past due amounts prior to this time period or after this time period.

- Funding is designed to be a one‐time opportunity, with only one payment per

household (for residential) or account holder and their successors (for non‐

residential).

- Funding can be used for the following bills:

_____ Water 

_____ Wastewater 

_____ Electric 

_____ Gas 

Applicant’s Certification:  

- I desire to receive any assistance to which I am legally entitled under this program and its specifications.

- I certify that the reason I am eligible for this CARES Act assistance is correct to the best of my knowledge and

belief.

- I understand that my signature on this form gives permission for the staff at (insert name of city or county and

municipal utility) to verify records as necessary to verify my eligibility for assistance. 

Action Items - Page 71



- I declare to the best of my knowledge that: 

o (1) for residential applicants: I am the only person living in the household at the address shown on this

form who has applied for this assistance, or

o (2) for non‐residential applicants: I am the only person who has applied for/on behalf of the non‐

residential account holder, including their successors, at the address shown on this form and that I am

not a government account holder.

- I certify that this customer has not received CARES act relief for any of the arrearages I am applying for from any

other source including Rebuild VA Grants. 

- I understand that if I give false information or withhold information in order to make myself eligible for benefits

that I am not entitled to or apply for assistance at more than one site, I can be prosecuted for fraud and/or

denied assistance in the future.

- I understand that the agencies involved in this program may verify all of the information which I have provided. 

- I understand and my signature on this form gives permission to (insert name of municipal utility) to which I am

applying to verify information concerning my need for assistance.

- Others?

___________________________________________________  _______________________________________________ 

Printed Name   Signature 

___________________________________________________ 

Title (for non‐residential account holders) 

Municipal Utility Intake Information:  ACTION TAKEN    Screener   Date____

Action Items - Page 72



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Item #6.07 

Subject:   CDBG Asbestos Abatement and Billing Demolition Funding Agreement with the 
Town of Waverly 

Board Meeting Date:   December 17 2020 

============================================================================== 

Summary:   Attached for your consideration is a CDBG Asbestos Abatement and Building 
Demolition Funding Agreement with the Town of Waverly to cover the costs associated with the 
demolition of 315 West Main Street in Waverly (tornado damage) in the amount of $69,300.  This 
agreement was prepared by the County Attorney and provides for the use of CDBG funds from 
the UNOS project to cover demolition costs.  Attached for your review is a letter from the Town 
of Waverly and attached quotes, as well as a CDBG budget revision request to the Virginia 
Department of Housing and Community Development (which must approve this budget revision). 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the CDBG Asbestos Abatement and Building 
Demolition Funding Agreement with the Town of Waverly. 

Attachments: (1)  CDBG Asbestos Demolition Agreement 
(2) UNOS Request Letter from Mayor McPhaul, dated September 29, 2020
(3) Budget Revision Worksheet
(4) Copies of Two Bids

============================================================================== 
REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board approves the CDBG Asbestos Abatement and Building 
Demolition Funding Agreement with the Town of Waverly. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 
White ___ ___  (Tie Breaker) 

Action Items - Page 73



Community Development Block Grant Project 
Asbestos Abatement and Building Demolition Funding Agreement 

This AGREEMENT made and entered this ____ day of December, 2020, by and among THE 
COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA (the “County”), a political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia, and THE TOWN OF WAVERLY (the “Town”), a political 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia 

Whereas, on August 31, 2020 the Town of Waverly (“Town”) issued a Request for 
Proposal seeking firms to provide asbestos abatement and building demolition services for 
several structures located at 315 W. Main Street in the Town of Waverly( the “Project”); and 

Whereas, pursuant to that solicitation, the Town selected J & J Clearing and Demolition, 
Inc. (“Contractor”) to perform the services; and 

Whereas, the subject structures pose an imminent threat to public safety and timing is of 
the essence that the Project services be performed; and 

Whereas, Sussex County has been allocated Community Development Block Grant funds 
by the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development for the purposes of 
covering the costs of this Project; and 

Whereas, the County desires to provide the CDBG funds to the Town to cover Project 
costs.  

Now, Therefore in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual benefits, promises and 
undertakings of the parties to this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledge, the parties covenant and agree as 
follows: 

1. As soon as practicable after the execution of this agreement, the County shall pay to the Town
the funds required for the Town to pay Contractor to perform the services as described in more
detail in the RFP and Contactor’s Proposal (Attached as Exhibits A and B).   Such funds paid by
the County shall not exceed the lower of $63,000.00 or the amount CDBG funds the County
receives from the Commonwealth of Virginia for this Project, unless otherwise agreed to by the
County in writing.

2. Upon receipt of the funds, the Town shall (i) execute its agreement with Contractor to perform
the Project services set out in Exhibits A and B, (ii)  commence the work promptly, (iii) require
the Contractor to have all required state licenses and be appropriately insured, and (iv) be
responsible for administering the agreement with Contractor.

3. The Town agrees that the funds shall be held in escrow with the Town Attorney to ensure
utilization of the funds solely for this Project and no other purpose.

Action Items - Page 74



4. The Town agrees to provide the County with copies of all invoices received by Contractor
and copies of receipts for all payments the Town makes to the Contractor for this Project.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date 
first written above. 

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia 

By: __________________________________________ 

      Name: _____________________________________ _________________ 
Date 

      Title: ______________________________________ 

Approved as to Form: 

________________________ 
County Attorney 

TOWN OF WAVERLY, VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia 

By: __________________________________________ 

      Name: _____________________________________ _________________ 
Date 

      Title: ______________________________________ 

Approved as to Form: 

________________________ 
Town Attorney 

Action Items - Page 75



EXHIBITS A and B 
Request for Proposal and Contractor Proposal 

Action Items - Page 76



Action Items - Page 77



Action Items - Page 78



Action Items - Page 79



Action Items - Page 80



Action Items - Page 81



Action Items - Page 82



Action Items - Page 83



Action Items - Page 84



Action Items - Page 85



Action Items - Page 86



Action Items - Page 87



Action Items - Page 88



Action Items - Page 89



Action Items - Page 90



Action Items - Page 91



Action Items - Page 92



Action Items - Page 93



County of Sussex 

Sussex County Regional Urgent Needs Project - County Project 

CIG#17-UN-16 - Rev.12/1/2020 

Budget Line Item Current 
CDBG 

Current Non-
CDBG 

Proposed 
CDBG 

Proposed 
Non-CDBG 

CDBG 
Budget 

Difference 

+/- CDBG 
Percentage 

Change 
Administration 

Execution of DHCD Contract $14,000 $14,000 0% 
Administration $56,000 $56,000 0% 
Other:  Labor Compliance $7,000 $7,000 0% 
Other:  Rehab Intake/Inc Verification $13,000 $13,000 0% 
Other:  Legal $2,000 $2,000 0% 
Other:  Advertising $1,000 $1,000 0% 
Other:  Workshop Expenses/Travel $1,000 $1,000 0% 
Other:  Recording Fees/Title Searches $4,000 $4,000 0% 
Satisfactory Compliance Review(s) $6,000 $6,000 0% 

Subtotal $100,000 $4,000 $100,000 $4,000 0% 

Interim Assistance 
Other:  Tornado Cleanup $56,609 $56,609 0% 

Subtotal $56,609 $56,609 0% 

Clearance & Demolition 
Demolition $40,000 $109,300 $69,300 +173.25%

Subtotal $40,000 $109,300 $69,300 +173.25%

Action Items - Page 94



Budget Line Item Current CDBG Current 
Non-CDBG 

Proposed 
CDBG 

Proposed 
Non-CDBG 

CDBG 
Budget 

Difference 

+/- CDBG 
Percentage 

Change 
Façade Improvements 

Façade Construction $50,000 $50,000 0% 
Architectural Designs/Engineering $7,500 $7,500 0% 
Temporary Relocation $1,500 $1,500 0% 
HMEP $250 $250 0% 
Other:  Waived Permit Fees $400 $400 0% 

Subtotal $84,250 $400 $84,250 $400 0% 

Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation $580,364 $1,800 $580,364 $1,800 0% 
Owner-Occupied Construction $492,035 $492,035 0% 
Rehabilitation Specialist $49,219 $49,219 0% 
Temporary Relocation $34,600 $34,600 0% 
HMEP $4,510 $4,510 0% 
Other:  Waived Permit Fees $1,800 $1,800 0% 

Subtotal $580,364 $1,800 $580,364 $1,800 0% 

Rental Rehabilitation $42,900 $250 $42,900 $250 0% 
Rental Rehab Construction $36,000 $36,000 0% 
Rehabilitation Specialist $3,600 $3,600 0% 
Temporary Relocation $3,000 $3,000 0% 
HMEP $300 $300 0% 
Other:  Waived Permit Fees $250 $250 0% 

Subtotal $42,900 $250 $42,900 $250 0% 

Action Items - Page 95



Budget Line Item Current CDBG Current 
Non-CDBG 

Proposed 
CDBG 

Proposed 
Non-CDBG 

CDBG 
Budget 

Difference 

+/- CDBG 
Percentage 

Change 
Owner-Occupied Substantial Reconstruction $484,500 $2,100 $484,500 $2,100 0% 
Owner-Occupied Construction $420,000 $420,000 0% 
Rehabilitation Specialist $42,000 $42,000 0% 
Temporary Relocation $21,000 $21,000 0% 
HMEP $1,500 $1,500 0% 
Other:  Waived Permit Fees $2,100 $2,100 0% 

Subtotal $484,500 $2,100 $484,500 $2,100 0% 

Drainage Improvements 
Drainage System Repairs $6,500 $6,500 0% 
Other:  Engineering $650 $650 0% 
Other:  Inspections $600 $500 $600 $500 0% 

Subtotal $7,750 $500 $7,750 $500 0% 

Street/Curbs 
Street/Curb Repairs $45,900 $0 -100%
Other:  Engineering $3,555 $0 -100%
Other:  Inspections $3,325 $1,000 $0 $1,000 -100%

Subtotal $52,780 $1,000 $0 $1,000 $52,780 -100%

Sidewalks 
Sidewalk/Power Pole Repairs $24,900 $500 $8,380 $500 $16,520 -66.34%
Other:  Engineering $2,390 $2,390 0% 
Other:  Inspections $2,210 $1,000 $2,210 $1,000 0% 

Subtotal $29,500 $1,500 $12,980 $1,500 $16,520 -66.34%

Action Items - Page 96



Budget Line Item Current CDBG Current 
Non-CDBG 

Proposed 
CDBG 

Proposed 
Non-CDBG 

CDBG 
Budget 

Difference 

+/- CDBG 
Percentage 

Change 
Subtotal Infrastructure $90,030 $3,000 $20,730 $3,000 $69,300 -76.97%

Total $1,397,044 $68,159 $1,397,044 $68,159 0% 

Action Items - Page 97


	#1 12 17 2020 agenda
	#2.01 11 19 2020 Regular BOS meeting minutes
	#2.02 Warrants and Vouchers
	December 16, 2020.pdf
	DEC 20 2020


	#2.03-#2.10 Consent Agenda
	#2.03 Treasurer's Report
	#2.04 Financial Update
	#2.05-1 Animal Services 2020
	#2.05-2 Animal Control Monthly September 2020
	#2.05-3 AC November 2020 BOS Monthly Intake
	January 2020

	#2.05-4
	#2.05-5 November 2020 Officer Hours Sheet
	Sheet1

	#2.06-1 Community Development
	#2.06A November 2020 monthly report for board packet.1
	#2.06B BLDG November 2020 Report (002)
	#2.07 - Monthly Housing Report dec2020
	#2.08-1 Environmental Inspections 2020
	#2.08-2 November 2020 Tonnage Report
	#2.09-1 Sheriff's Dept. 2020
	#2.09-2 Sheriff's Report
	#2.10-1 Public Safety 2020
	#2.10-2 nov report

	#3.01 Recognition Presentation
	BOARD ACTION FORM
	MOTION BY:

	#4 Public Hearing
	#4.01-1 Tax Relief
	#4.01-2 (V4) DRAFT Ordinance - Elderly  Disabled Tax Exemption 11.18.20 (002)

	#6 Action Items
	#6.01-1 WWTP
	#6.01-2 Work Order 8 Scope and Fee - Stony Creek WWTP Evaluation
	#6.02-1 VDOC
	#6.02-2 agreement
	#6.03-1 CARES Funding
	#6.03-2 CRF Expen. Schedule-Public
	Distribution

	#6.04-1 Shands Energy Termination Agreement
	#6.04-2 Siting Agreement_Shands_SussexCo_EPE signed_9.10.20 (002)
	#6.04-3 SussexCoDonationLetter_EastPoint_2020.12.9
	#6.04-4 Check 1444_Sussex County Virginia_VA_Shands Energy Center_Donation.pdf61_Redacted
	#6.05-1 FY22 Budget Schedule
	#6.05-2 FY22 Budget Planning Calendar-Public
	#6.06-1 COVID-19  Municipal Relief
	#6.06-2 CLEAN Authority Municipal Relief Program MOU - 12.12.20
	#6.06-3 CLEAN Waverly Municipal Relief Program MOU - 12.12.20
	#6.06-4 087 - AwardLetterGuidanceCertification - SussexCountyTownOfWaverlySussexServiceAuthority
	#6.06-5 086 - AwardLetterGuidanceCertification - SussexCountyServiceAuthority
	#6.07-1 CDBG Demo
	#6.07-2 CDBG asbestos.demo agreement 12.9.20 final clean (002)
	#6.07-3 UNOS Letter Richard Douglas
	#6.07-4 Budget Revision Worksheet.12.1.20.final (002)




